
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, June 9, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M.

Location: Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Michael Engelberger, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson,
Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim Swadley,
Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The
Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please
notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:

 Kettle Park West Update

2. Minutes and Reports:

 Minutes: Public Safety Committee (4/22/2015), Finance Committee (5/12/2015),
Community Affairs/ Council Policy (5/5/2015), Redevelopment Authority (4/8/2015,
and Personnel Committee (4/13/2015)

3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Council Minutes: May 26, 2015

OLD BUSINESS

5. O-7-2015- An Ordinance to Amend Section 6-2(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code relating to
the keeping of animals (Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0)

SECOND READING

6. O-9-2015- An Ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) of the City of Stoughton
Municipal Code Relating to Commercial Animal Boarding ( Planning Commission
recommends approval 5-0) SECOND READING

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



NEW BUSINESS

7. R-84-2015-Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of $2,725,000 General Obligation
Promissory Notes, Series 2015A (Finance meets June 9, 2015)

8. R-87-2015-Approving an Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request,
Certified Survey Map (CSM) by Robert Jensen for property located adjacent to 3376
Quam Drive, Town of Dunn, Wisconsin. (Planning meets June 8, 2015)

9. R-88-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to Reject Bids for the
2015 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project (Finance recommends approval 5-0)

10. R-89-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Liquor
License renewals for the period of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016. (Public Safety
recommends approval 3-0)

11. R-90-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary
Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License to the Stoughton
Opera House Friends Association for the Catfish River Music Festival. (Public Safety
recommends approval 3-0)

12. R-91-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue an Operator’s
License to Nicole Stewart (Public Safety recommends denial 2-1)

13. **R-85-2015-Resolution approving the Second Amended and Restated Agreement to
Undertake Development relating to the Kettle Park West Development

14. **R-86-2015-Resolution approving a Memorandum of Understanding and other matters
relating to the Implementation of the Kettle Park West development agreement

**The Meeting May Close Per State Statute 19.85(1)(e), deliberating or negotiating the
purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed
session, and then reopen to take action on any items discussed in closed session and
continue the regular course of business.

15. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council
President Paul Lawrence





 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, June 9, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Michael Engelberger, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson, 


Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim Swadley, 


Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The 


Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 


notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


 Kettle Park West Update 


 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


 


 Minutes:  Public Safety Committee (4/22/2015), Finance Committee (5/12/2015), 


Community Affairs/ Council Policy (5/5/2015), Redevelopment Authority (4/8/2015, 


and Personnel Committee (4/13/2015) 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  (*Please note:  Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda) 


 


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. Council Minutes: May 26, 2015 


 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-7-2015- An Ordinance to Amend Section 6-2(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code relating to 


 the keeping of animals  (Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0) 


         SECOND READING 


 


6. O-9-2015- An Ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) of the City of Stoughton 


 Municipal Code Relating to Commercial Animal Boarding ( Planning Commission 


 recommends approval 5-0)     SECOND  READING 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


NEW BUSINESS  
 


7. R-84-2015-Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of $2,725,000 General Obligation 


 Promissory Notes, Series 2015A  (Finance meets June 9, 2015) 


 


8. R-87-2015-Approving an Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request, 


 Certified Survey Map (CSM) by Robert Jensen for property located adjacent to 3376 


 Quam Drive, Town of Dunn, Wisconsin.  (Planning meets June 8, 2015) 


 


9. R-88-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to Reject Bids for the 


 2015 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project  (Finance recommends approval 5-0) 


 


10. R-89-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Liquor 


 License renewals for the period of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016. (Public Safety 


 recommends approval 3-0) 


 


11. R-90-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary 


 Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License to the Stoughton 


 Opera House Friends Association for the Catfish River Music Festival. (Public Safety 


 recommends approval 3-0) 


 


12. R-91-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue an Operator’s 


 License to Nicole Stewart (Public Safety recommends denial 2-1)  


 


13. **R-85-2015-Resolution approving the Second Amended and Restated Agreement to 


 Undertake Development relating to the Kettle Park West Development 


 


14. **R-86-2015-Resolution approving a Memorandum of Understanding and other matters 


 relating to the  Implementation of the Kettle Park West development agreement 


 
**The Meeting May Close Per State Statute 19.85(1)(e), deliberating or negotiating the 
purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 
session, and then reopen to take action on any items discussed in closed session and 
continue the regular course of business. 


 


15. ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 


services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council 


President Paul Lawrence 








 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, May 26, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building  


Members:  Michael Engelberger, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson, 


   Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim Swadley,  


   Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor 


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:00pm. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that eleven alderpersons were present, Eric Hohol was absent. 


 


Mayor Olson thanked Lt. Conlin for his exceptional work planning and coordinating all of the activities 


for Syttende Mai. 


 


Mayor Olson received a thank you card from the family of Marilyn Granrud, thanking Amy Jo 


Gillingham and Pat Conlin for all of their help. 


 


Mayor Olson announced that she would be speaking at the Dane County Housing Summit at the Alliant 


Energy Center in Madison on May 27, 2015. 


 


Mayor Olson proclaimed the week of May 17 through May 23, 2015 as the National Public Works 


Week. 


 


Mayor Olson proclaimed that the week of May 15 through May 23, 2015 as Emergency Medical 


Services Week. 


 


Kettle Park West Update 


 


Planning Director Scheel stated that the developer did received bids and they are being evaluated 


and may need to be rebid. 


 


Minutes and Reports: The following minutes and reports were entered into the record: 


 


Minutes:  Finance Committee (4/28/2015), Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee 


(4/9/2015), Landmarks Commission (4/9/2015), Planning Commission (4/13/2015), and Utilities 


Committee (4/20/2015) 


Reports:  April Treasurer’s Report & Utilities Financial Reports 


 


 


 


 


  


 







 


 


Public Comment Period:   


 


Buzz Davis; 1021 Riverview Dr; Spoke in favor of the creation of the Ad Hoc Committee for the Kettle 


Park West Development.  
 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


Council Minutes: May 12, 2015 


 


R-80-2015- Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Amy Kahl to the Police and 


Fire Commission 


 


Motion by Jenson, to approve the consent agenda, second by Swangstu. Motion carried unanimously by 


acclamation 11-0. 


 


PUBLIC HEARING:  to consider special assessments for sidewalks, driveways, aprons, carriage 


walks, roof drain piping, drainage flumes, sanitary sewer laterals, water service laterals and curb 


and gutter for the Washington/Fifth Street Project, the South Alley  Project between Division 


Street and Forrest Street, and the 2015 Street Pulverization  Project, within the City of Stoughton 


and levying of special assessments to pay for same. 


 


Mayor Olson closed the meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:08pm. Scheel discussed that 


the Public Hearing is regarding the use a special assessments for various street projects to be 


completed in the City in 2015. 


 


Hohol joined the meeting at 7:10pm. 


 


Brian Moll; 139 E Main St; Questioned how the street is going to be changed and where is the 


City at in that process. 


 


Scheel addressed Mr. Moll and discussed what would be changed on the streets. Scheel also 


welcomed Moll to come to his office so it could be discussed further in detail. 


 


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing at 7:13pm. 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NONE     


 


NEW BUSINESS  
 


R-81-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton Audit 


Report and Management Letter   


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-81-2015, second by Swadley. Heather Acker from Baker Tilly 


addressed the Council about the findings of the 2014 Audit Report. She explained that overall the City’s 







 


 


audit report showed consistency and very healthy numbers. Selsor asked what the impact of borrowing for 


KPW would be on the City’s overall debt. Heather concluded that the borrowing would keep the debt at 


about 50%, which she noted is a healthy number.   


 


Motion carried 12-0 by a roll call vote. 
 


 


O-7-2015- An Ordinance to Amend Section 6-2(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code relating to  the 


keeping of animals   


          


Christianson read the ordinance and noted that it would be voted on at the June 9, 2015 meeting. 


 


O-9-2015- An Ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code 


Relating to Commercial Animal Boarding 


 


Christianson read the ordinance and noted that it would be voted on at the June 9, 2015 meeting. 


      


 


R-79-2015- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Spanrie Properties to construct a 7- unit 


Multiplex Residential Building at 2301 Lincoln Avenue, Stoughton, Wisconsin.   


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-79-2015, second by Hohol. Swadley wondered what the 


demographics for this building would be. Scheel explained that he understood that this building 


would be not be subsidized housing, but would be available at a market rate. Motion carried 


unanimously by acclamation 12-0.  


 
 


R-82-2015- Resolution Authorizing Improvement and levying Special Assessments against 


benefited property in the City of Stoughton for the improvements of sidewalks, driveways, aprons, 


carriage walks, roof drain piping, drainage flumes, sanitary sewer laterals, water service laterals 


and curb and gutter for the Washington/ Fifth Street project,  South Alley project between Division 


Street and Forrest Street, and the 2015 Street  Pulverization project with the City of Stoughton, 


Wisconsin.   


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-82-2015, second by Lawrence. Mayor Olson corrected that 


this item was before the Finance Committee on May 12, 2015, not May 26, 2015 as indicated on 


the agenda. Swangstu asked what the impact would be for home owners in regards to the amount 


of the special assessments. Scheel noted that it depends on the property and all of that information 


is located in the packet. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 12-0. 


 


R-83-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to Request Proposals for 


qualified firms to provide property assessment services for the City of Stoughton,  Wisconsin.  


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-83-2015, second by Swadley. Sullivan noted that this 


request for proposals would include provisions that the assessor would conduct actual 


walkthroughs for the City. She also noted that this is a preliminary move, not a binding contract. 







 


 


Hirsch stated that she wanted to see the request for proposals to include a seven year and ten year 


price for the walkthroughs. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 12-0.  


 


Discussion and possible action regarding the City Council forming an ad hoc committee to 


meet with Forward Development for the purpose of examining, evaluating, and advising 


regarding the form and content of any existing contracts for the sale or purchase of Kettle 


Park West land and property, and on the nature and contents of any future such contracts 


to insure such contracts meet the requirements of the terms of the Developer Agreement.  


 


Alderperson Selsor stated that he would like to see the Council’s involvement to create this 


committee. He also stated that he felt that there should be four realtors on this committee and any 


alderpersons who wish to be a part of it as well. He also noted that this is not an attempt to 


torpedo the project. Lawrence asked how many people would be on this committee. Selsor stated 


that he was unsure as to how many people should be on the committee. Selsor explained that this 


committee would be responsible for protecting the city’s finances and asking if there is a time 


line for building on the other lots in the Kettle Park West Development. Selsor explained that the 


committee would exam, evaluate, and advise regarding the contracts. Hohol explained that the 


standing committees have certain jurisdictions and that the committee would be strictly advisory.  


He also noted that the City attorney is primarily the one who would review these contracts versus 


a realtor. Attorney Dregne informed the Council if they created this committee it would be 


subject to open meetings and questioned how members are going to be appointed. Christianson 


explained that he felt that this committee suggested was being brought up too late in the process, 


although it would beneficial in the future, just not for KPW.  Selsor mentioned that his request to 


create this committee is driven by the concern of any potential buyers pulling out of the project 


and not having that project completed. Selsor explained that the committee would have a chair 


person who would be responsible for conducting the meeting and taking notes at the meetings. 


He also noted that they would report back to Council either in a written or verbal report.  


 


 


Motion by Selsor that the Council create an ad hoc committee to meet with Forward 


Development for the purpose of examining, evaluating, and advising regarding the form and 


content of any existing contracts for the sale or purchase of Kettle Park West land and property, 


and on the nature and contents of any future such contracts to insure such contracts meet the 


requirements of the terms of the Developer Agreement this committee is to be formed 


immediately and shall consist of all council members who would like to be included and to 


include the City attorney as a staff attendant, second by Lawrence. 


 


Hohol questioned the forum and mentioned that this should be done in front of the full Council 


and televised.  


 


Lawrence suggested that this be taken care of as a Committee of the Whole versus an ad hoc 


committee.  


 


Amendment to the motion by Engelberger, to replace the words Ad Hoc Committee with 


Committee of the Whole in the previous motion, second by Lawrence. 


 







 


 


Amendment to the motion to read: Motion by Engelberger that the Council hold a committee of 


the whole or a Council meeting with Forward Development for the purpose of examining, 


evaluating, and advising regarding the form and content of any existing contracts for the sale or 


purchase of Kettle Park West land and property, and on the nature and contents of any future 


such contracts to insure such contracts meet the requirements of the terms of the Developer 


Agreement, second by Lawrence. 


 


Boersma asked the City Attorney if there will be a Public Comment period at the Committee of 


the Whole meeting. Attorney Dregne stated that decision is the president’s discretion and the 


Committee of the Whole can have citizen dialogue at any time.  


 


 


The amendment to the motion carried by a voice vote 11-1, with Swangstu voting no. 


 


The original motion carried by a voice vote 11-1, with Swangstu voting no. 


 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Jenson. Motion 


carried unanimously by acclamation 12-0. Mayor Olson adjourned the meeting of the Common 


Council at 8:43pm. 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\6-9-2015\R-85-2015-Resolution approving second amended agreement.doc 1
0606150946


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMOM COUNCIL


To approve the Second Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development relating to the
Kettle Park West Development.


File Number: R-85-2015 Date Introduced: June 9, 2015


The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, resolves as
follows:


RECITALS


1. The City of Stoughton (“City”) and Kettle Park West, LLC (“Developer”) entered into an
Agreement to Undertake Development dated as of January 29, 2014 (the “Original Agreement”),
which was amended and restated pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Agreement to
Undertake Development dated as of November 13, 2014 (the “Amended and Restated
Agreement”).


2. The City and Developer wish to replace the Amended and Restated Agreement with a Second
Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development.


RESOLUTION


The Second Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development between the
City and Kettle Park West, LLC, attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution, is approved, and the
Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the Agreement on the City's behalf.


The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at
a meeting held on June 9, 2015.


APPROVED:







Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST:


Lana Kropf, City Clerk


Posted


Published







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\6-9-2015\R-85-2015-Resolution approving second amended agreement.doc 3
0606150946


Exhibit A


Second Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development Between
The City of Stoughton and Kettle Park West LLC







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE 


DEVELOPMENT 


 


(Kettle Park West Development) 


 


THIS SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE 


DEVELOPMENT entered into as of the ________13th day of June, 2015November, 2014, by 


and between the City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “City”), and Kettle 


Park West, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (the “Developer”). 


 


RECITALS 


 


1. The City and Developer entered into an Agreement to Undertake Development 


dated as of January 29, 2014 (the “Original"January Agreement”), which was amended and 


restated pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development 


dated as of November 13, 2014 (the “Amended and Restated Agreement”).").  The City and 


Developer wish to replace the Amended and RestatedJanuary Agreement with this 


Agreement.Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development (the "Agreement").   


 


2. Developer proposes to purchase the real property described on Attachment A attached 


hereto (the "Property"), and intends to undertake commercial development on the Property in 


accordance with the Planned Development District zoning of the Kettle Park West Commercial 


Property approved by the City in Ordinance No. 0-23-2013.  Developer has also requested City 


approval of a land division plat known as Kettle Park West - Commercial Center. 


 


3. Chapter 66 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code requires that an agreement be made 


for the installation of improvements needed to serve the Plat. 


 


4. Developer is unable to develop the Property without financial assistance in constructing 


certain public improvements, including improvements to U.S. Highway 51 and State Highway 


138.  Developer also requires financial assistance to offset the cost of substantial site grading and 


stormwater management costs within the Property. 


 


5. The City wants to facilitate the development of the Property, but is unable to do so unless 


certain conditions are satisfied, including the creation of a Tax Increment Finance District that 


includes the Property, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1105. 


 


6. In order to make the development financially feasible, the City finds it appropriate to 


enter this Agreement to set forth certain obligations and understandings in the event a Tax 


Increment District is created and the other conditions set forth in this Agreement are satisfied, all 


as described in, and subject to the reservations contained in, this Agreement. 


 


7. The City finds and determines that unless the City provides the tax increment 


development assistance described in this Agreement, Developer will not develop the Property. 


 


Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5", Space


After:  12 pt, Tab stops:  0.5", Left


Formatted: Underline







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


2 


8. The City finds that the development of the Property and the fulfillment of the terms and 


conditions of this Agreement are in the vital and best interests of the City and its residents, by 


expanding the tax base and creating employment and commercial opportunities, thereby serving 


public purposes in accordance with state and local law. 


 


9. The City Council on June ___, 2015November 11, 2014, adopted Resolution No. R-


_________________-135-2014 approving this Agreement and authorizing the City, through its 


duly authorized officials and agents, to execute this Agreement. 


 


AGREEMENT 


 


In consideration of the Recitals, and the mutual promises, obligations and benefits 


provided hereunder, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, Developer and 


the City agree as follows: 


 


A. DEFINITIONS.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms, when having an initial 


capital letter, shall mean: 


 


1. Actual Tax Increment.  The actual cash flow received by the City from the tax 


increment generated by the District pursuant to Wis. Stat. sec. 66.1105.   


 


2. Annual Debt Service.  The Principal and Interest payments due on the City 


Borrowing.  An estimated schedule of Annual Debt Service Payments is attached as 


Attachment B. 


 


3. City Improvements.  The construction of water, sewer and storm sewer mains 


within the planned Jackson Street crossing of U.S. Highway 51, from approximately the East 


right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 51 to approximately the West right-of-way line of U.S. 


Highway 51. 


 


4. District.  A Tax Increment District to be created pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, 


which must include the Property within its boundaries, and which must include within its 


approved Project Plan, as allowable Project Costs, payment of the cost of the Off-Site Public 


Improvements, the Stormwater Management Improvements, and the Municipal Revenue 


Obligations provided for in Section C of this Agreement.   


 


5. Excess Tax Increment.  Excess Tax Increment has the meaning given in Section 


D.3.(b)(4). 


 


6. Plat.  The land division plat filed by Developer with the City on December 19, 


2013, entitled "Kettle Park West - Commercial Center."    


 


7. Project.  The construction of a mixed use development in accordance with the 


Planned Development District zoning for the Kettle Park West Commercial Property approved 


by City Ordinance No. 0-23-2013, and as such zoning may be amended from time to time. 


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


3 


8. Property.  The property described in Attachment A. 


 


9. City Administrative Costs.  All costs, including city staff, engineering, legal, 


planning, and financial consultant costs, incurred by the City relating to: the creation and 


administration of the District; construction of the Public Improvements, including construction 


observation and inspection costs; the drafting and negotiation of this Agreement and other 


agreements relating to the District or the Project; and other costs incurred by the City in 


connection with the District, the Public Improvements or the Project, and not paid by the 


Developer pursuant to Section 4. B of the Pre-Annexation Agreement between the City and the 


Developer. 


 


10. City Borrowing.  The amount borrowed by the City through the issuance of bonds 


or other forms of debt or borrowing, to fund the reimbursement of Developer for the cost of 


constructing the Off-Site Public Improvements as provided for in Section C.1 of this Agreement, 


to fund the reimbursement of Developer for the cost of the Stormwater Management 


Improvements as provided for in Section C.2 of this Agreement, and to fund the City's 


construction of the City Improvements.   


 


11. Off-Site Public Improvements.  The following public improvements to be 


constructed for the benefit of the District in accordance with detailed plans and specifications to 


be prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning Director: 


 


(a) Utility Relocation:  Relocation of overhead electric and underground gas 


equipment along U.S. Highway 51 and 138. 


 


(b) Highway 51 Improvements.  Reconstruction of the intersection of Jackson 


Street and U.S. Highway 51, including sidewalks at the intersection; construction of a turning 


lane into the Property between Jackson Street and State Highway 138;  new traffic signals at 


Jackson Street and U.S. Highway 51; temporary traffic signals at the intersection of U.S. 


Highway 51 and State Highway 138.  The City may require an off-road shared-use path. 


 


(c) State Highway 138 Improvements.  Reconstruction of State Highway 138 


with asphalt from the West line of the Plat to approximately existing Veek Road; water main 


from the West lot line of Lot 2 of the Plat to the existing water main in McComb Road; sanitary 


sewer main from the West line of Lot 2 of the Plat to the East line of Lot 2; roundabout at the 


primary drive into Lot 2 of the Plat.  The City may also require this work to include curb and 


gutter, sidewalk, and on-road bike accommodations, and may also require an off-road shared-use 


path. 


 


(d) Jackson Street (West).  Construction of Jackson Street, from 


approximately the West right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 51 to approximately the West line of 


Lot 3 of the Plat, including sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, curb and gutter, street, 


sidewalk, and street lighting.  The City may also require this work to include an asphalt shared-


use path. 


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


4 


(e) Jackson Street (East).  Construction of Jackson Street between the West 


right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 51 to the East right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 51. 


 


12. Site Grading.  All site grading work the Developer is required to complete in 


connection with the development of the Property, pursuant to grading plans to be prepared by 


Developer and approved by the City Planning Director in accordance with applicable site 


grading, erosion control and stormwater management regulations.  


 


13. Stormwater Management Improvements.  Regional stormwater management 


improvements including a regional infiltration basin, a regional water quality basin, a pump 


station, and a pressure pipe, to be designed by the Developer as part of the stormwater 


management plan for the Property, and approved by the City Planning Director. 


 


14. On-Site Public Improvements.  Public improvements needed to serve the lots 


within the Plat, but not including the Off-Site Public Improvements.  The improvements 


contemplated herein include the following:  Sanitary sewer service mains, manholes, laterals and 


all appurtenances; water mains, laterals, hydrants, valves and all appurtenances; and gas and 


electric utilities, all in accordance with plans and specifications to be prepared by Developer and 


approved by the City Planning Director.   


 


15. Public Improvements.  Public Improvements means, collectively, the Off-Site 


Public Improvements, the On-Site Public Improvements, and the Stormwater Management 


Improvements.   


 


16. Value Increment.  Value Increment has the meaning in Section 66.1105(2)(m) of 


the 2011-2012 Wisconsin Statutes. 


 


B. DEVELOPER OBLIGATIONS. 


 


1. Construction of Public Improvements. 


 


(a) Design of Improvements.  Developer shall prepare detailed plans and 


specifications of the Site Grading, erosion control, and the Public Improvements for review by 


and subject to approval by the City Planning Director.  Where standards and/or specifications 


have not been established by the City, all work shall be designed and constructed in accordance 


with established engineering practices as designated and approved by the City Planning Director.  


All Public Improvements shall be designed, constructed and installed in accordance with the 


standard specifications of the City, except as variances to or waivers of those requirements have 


been granted, and in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the City Planning 


Director. 


 


(b) Construction of Public Improvements.  Developer shall be responsible for 


the construction and installation of the Public Improvements.  Except as otherwise provided in 


this Agreement, the Public Improvements will be designed, constructed and installed at 


Developer's sole expense.   


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


5 


(c) Public Bidding of Public Improvements.  Developer shall publicly 


advertise, bid and contract for the construction of the Public Improvements in accordance with 


Wisconsin law governing public construction, including but not limited to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.15, 


66.0901 and 779.14, under the supervision of the City Planning Director.  Statutory bid bonds, 


performance bonds and payment bonds shall be required for all Public Improvements in a form, 


and from sureties, approved by the City, and shall be issued for the express benefit of Developer 


and the City.  Developer shall prepare all public bidding documents, contracts and bonds, subject 


to review and approval by the City Planning Director and the City Attorney.  Construction 


contracts shall expressly grant the City the same rights to enforce the contract against contractors 


and sureties as Developer.  The bid opening and bid evaluation shall be conducted jointly by the 


Developer and the City.  All contracts for construction of the Public Improvements shall be 


awarded by Developer to the lowest responsible bidder.  In the event of a disagreement between 


the City and Developer regarding which bid is the lowest responsible bid, the City’s 


determination shall be final.  In the case of an asserted mistake, omission or error in a bid, the 


parties shall follow the requirements of Wisconsin law, including Wis. Stat. § 66.0901(5).  In the 


event of a disagreement regarding whether to allow correction or withdrawal of a bid, the City’s 


determination shall be final.  


 


(d) Prevailing Wage Rates.  Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0903, the Developer 


will apply to the Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development to determine the prevailing 


wage rate for each trade or occupation required to construct the Public Improvements.  Once the 


Department issues its determination of the prevailing wage rates (“Determination”), it shall be 


considered to be incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement, and attached as 


Attachment E.  The Developer agrees to comply fully with Wis. Stat. § 66.0903, as well as the 


following:  (1) The Determination shall be physically incorporated into and made a part of any 


contract or subcontract that the Developer or its contractor enters into to perform work necessary 


to construct the Public Improvements.  (2) All Covered Employees (as defined in Wis. Stat. § 


66.0903(4)) who perform the work necessary to construct the Public Improvements shall be paid 


prevailing wage rates according to the Determination, and may not be permitted to work a 


greater number of hours per day or per week than the prevailing hours of labor, unless they are 


paid for all hours worked in excess of the prevailing hours of labor at a rate of at least 1.5 times 


their hourly basic rate of pay.  (3) The Developer and each contractor, subcontractor, or 


contractor’s or subcontractor’s agent performing work necessary to construct the Public 


Improvements shall keep full and accurate records clearly indicating the name and trade or 


occupation of every Covered Employee performing the work, and an accurate record of the 


number of hours worked by each of those persons and the actual wages paid for the hours 


worked.  (4) The Developer is hereby notified, and shall notify all contractors and 


subcontractors, that if DWD finds a contractor violating the prevailing wage law, DWD shall 


order the payment of the wages and overtime, if any, and shall assess an additional amount equal 


to 100 percent of the amount owed as liquidated damages.  (5) The City may demand and 


examine, and the Developer and every contractor, subcontractor or contractor’s or 


subcontractor’s agent shall keep, and make available for inspection upon request by the City, 


copies of payrolls and other records and information relating to the wages paid to Covered 


Employees performing the work necessary to construct the Public Improvements.  (6) The 


Developer shall require that, upon completion of any project involved in construction of the 


Public Improvements and before receiving final payment for his or her work on the project, each 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


6 


agent, contractor, or subcontractor shall furnish the Developer the City with an affidavit stating 


that the agent, contractor or subcontractor has complied fully with the requirements of Wis. Stat. 


§ 66.0903.  The Developer shall not authorize final payment until the affidavit is filed in proper 


form and order.  (7) Upon completion of the construction of Public Improvements, and prior to 


the City’s acceptance of the Public Improvements, Developer shall file with the City an affidavit 


stating that the Developer has complied fully with the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 66.0903 and 


that the Developer has received an affidavit under the above subsection (6) from each of the 


Developer’s agents, contractors and subcontractors.  The City shall not accept the Public 


Improvements until the affidavit from the Developer is filed in proper form and order. 


 


(e) Construction Management.  Two copies of the approved, signed and 


stamped plans and specifications shall be provided to the City Planning Director, and one copy 


shall be provided to each contractor.  Only stamped and signed copies of the plans and 


specifications shall be used on the job site. 


 


(f) Traffic Control, Signs and Barricades.  Developer shall install or cause the 


installation of, and maintain during construction and until the Public Improvements are accepted 


by the City, traffic controls as specified in a traffic control plan to be prepared by Developer and 


approved by the City Planning Director and the Wisconsin Department of Transportation.  The 


traffic control plan shall be prepared in accordance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 


Devices, published by the Federal Highway Administration. 


 


(g) City Approval of Starting Dates.  No land disturbances or work on the 


Public Improvements shall begin without the City Planning Director's approval of a starting date 


and schedule which shall be submitted by the Developer to the City Planning Director a 


minimum of 20 calendar days before work is scheduled to begin.   


 


(h) Change to Work Order.  All change orders for the Public Improvements 


shall be reviewed and approved by Developer and the City Planning Director.  The City shall not 


be required to reimburse Developer for costs of any change orders relating to the Off-Site 


Improvements or the Stormwater Management Improvements except those specifically 


enumerated and agreed upon in written, signed agreements between Developer and the City.   


 


(i) Indemnification and Insurance.  Developer shall indemnify and hold the 


City and its officers and employees harmless from and against all claims, costs and liabilities of 


every kind and nature, for injury or damage received or sustained by any person or entity to the 


extent such claims, costs and liabilities arise from or relate to the negligence of Developer or its 


contractors, agents or representatives in the performance of work at the development site and 


elsewhere pursuant to this Agreement, except where such injury or damage results from the 


negligence of the City or its contractors or employees.  Developer further agrees to aid and 


defend the City and its officials and employees in the event that the City is named as a defendant 


in an action concerning the City's performance of work pursuant to this Agreement except where 


such suit is brought by the Developer, or on the basis of the City’s negligence or the negligence 


of its officials, employees or representatives.  Developer is not an agent or employee of the City.  


Developer and all contractors and subcontractors engaged in the construction of the Public 


Improvements shall comply with the City contract requirements pertaining to damage claims, 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


7 


indemnification of the City, and providing insurance coverage that is approved by the City.  The 


policies of insurance required hereunder shall name the City as additional insureds, and 


Developer and contractors shall maintain current certificates of insurance on file with the City. 


 


(j) Time of Completion.  The Public Improvements shall be substantially 


complete within 24 months after all conditions precedent in Section E have been satisfied, or 


before the time the Project is completed, whichever is sooner.  No damages may be recovered by 


Developer or any person against the City for delay in completion of the Public Improvements. 


 


(k) Acceptance.  After the Public Improvements required by this Agreement 


have been substantially completed, and within 10 days after receiving written notice that the 


Developer desires the City to inspect the On-Site Public Improvements, the City Planning 


Director or his designee shall inspect the improvements and, if acceptable to the City Planning 


Director, the City Council shall by resolution certify such completed improvements as being in 


compliance with the standards and specifications of the City.  Before obtaining certification of 


any such improvements, Developer shall:  (1) present to the City valid lien waivers from all 


contractors and subcontractors providing materials or performing work on the improvements for 


which certification is sought; (2) provide as-built drawings to the City Planning Director 


consisting of four hard copies on paper, one electronic copy as a pdf file, and one electronic copy 


in a digital format that is acceptable to the City; and (3) provide to the City the affidavit required 


to demonstrate compliance with prevailing wage rate requirements.  Certification by the City 


does not constitute a waiver by the City of the right to take action on account of defects in or 


failure of any improvements that are detected or which occur following such certification. 


 
The Developer agrees that Public Improvements will not be accepted by the City until the Public 


Improvements have been inspected and approved by the City Planning Director and furthermore 


until all affidavits and lien waivers are received by the City demonstrating that the contractors 


and their suppliers have been paid in full for all work and materials furnished under this 


Agreement, and prevailing wage rate requirements have been satisfied where applicable.  Water 


main and the respective service laterals shall not be accepted until a complete breakdown of all 


construction, engineering and administrative costs incurred by Developer is submitted to the City 


Planning Director.  In addition, the water system installation shall not be accepted until a 


bacteriologically safe sample is obtained and tested by a certified agency, and the City has been 


provided with a report from such agency confirming such testing.  Developer shall be 


responsible to flush the main, obtain the samples, and have all tests completed as may be 


required for the City's acceptance, under the direct supervision of the City’s water utility 


personnel.  In addition, Developer shall clean the storm sewers in accordance with the directives 


of the City Planning Director.   


 


The Developer agrees to provide for maintenance and repair of all required Public Improvements 


until such Public Improvements are formally accepted by the City. 


 


The City will provide timely notice to Developer whenever inspection reveals that an 


improvement does not conform to the required standards and specifications or is otherwise 


defective.  The Developer shall have 30 days from the issuance of such notice to cure the defect.  


If Developer is unable to cure the defect within 30 days due to an event or circumstance beyond 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


8 


the reasonable control of and without Developer's fault, neglect or negligence, the time to cure 


the defect shall be extended for such time as the event or circumstance preventing cure is 


removed. 


 


(l) Guarantee of Public Improvements.  The Developer agrees to guarantee 


and warrant all work performed on the Public Improvements under this Agreement for a period 


of one year from the date of final acceptance by the City of the work completed by the Developer 


against defects in workmanship or materials.  If any defect appears during the guarantee period, 


the Developer agrees to make required replacement or acceptable repairs of the defective work at 


its own expense, including total and complete restoration of any disturbed surface or component 


of the improvements on lands where the repairs or replacement is required, to the standard 


provided in the approved plans and specifications.  All guarantees or warranties for materials or 


workmanship of suppliers and third-party contractors for work performed under this Agreement 


which extend beyond the above guarantee period shall be assigned by Developer to the City.   


 


(m) Surety.  In addition to the statutory performance and payment bonds 


required in section B.1 (c), Developer shall provide a letter of credit as follows: 


  


(1) Letter of Credit.  The Developer shall provide the City with an 


irrevocable Letter of Credit issued pursuant to Chapter 405 of the Wisconsin 


Statutes in the amount of 125% of the estimated cost of the On-Site Public 


Improvements plus 25% of the estimated cost of the Off-Site Public 


Improvements and the Stormwater Management Improvements, to secure 


Developer's construction of the Public Improvements and Developer's guarantee 


of the Public Improvements.  The letter of credit shall be in a form acceptable to 


the City, and shall be issued by an entity that is acceptable to the City, or that has 


a rating of its long-term unsecured debt not lower than A1 by Moody’s Investors 


Service or A+ by Standard and Poor’s.  The Letter of Credit shall be payable to 


the City and shall be conditioned upon and guarantee to the City the performance 


by the Developer of Developer's obligations to construct and guarantee the Public 


Improvements under this Agreement.  The letter of credit shall be approved as to 


form by the City Attorney.  The letter of credit may be reduced from time to time 


in amounts equal to the value of the On-Site Public Improvements that have been 


installed, completed and accepted by the City.  In no event shall the letter of credit 


be reduced below the aggregate of:  125 percent of the estimated cost of the On-


Site Public Improvements not yet installed or accepted, plus 25 percent of the cost 


of On-Site Public Improvements that have been accepted, plus 25 percent of the 


estimated or actual cost of completed and accepted or uncompleted Off-Site 


Public Improvements and Stormwater Management Improvements. 


 


(2) Payment under Letter of Credit.  The Letter of Credit shall be 


payable to the City at any time upon presentation of (1) a sight draft drawn on the 


issuing Bank in the amount to which the City is entitled to draw pursuant to the 


terms of this Agreement; (2) a written statement by a City official that the City is 


entitled to draw on the Letter of Credit; and (3) the original Letter of Credit. 


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


9 


(3) Accounting.  Developer may inspect the City records of payments 


made using the Letter of Credit upon request at reasonable times.  However, the 


City retains the exclusive right to determine, among other things, questions of 


design, specifications, construction cost, performance, contract compliance, and 


payment in connection with the Public Improvements.  In the absence of fraud or 


palpable error on the part of the City, the City's decisions on all such matters shall 


control and shall be final. 


 


(4) Notice of Expiration.  Developer agrees to provide written notice 


of the expiration of any Letter of Credit or replacement Letter of Credit provided 


for herein not less than 60 days before its expiration by sending written notice to 


the City.  The Letter of Credit shall be renewed at least 30 days before its 


expiration date, or any renewal date, until the completion of the guarantee period 


specified in Section B.2 (m) of this Agreement. 


 


(5) Remedies Not Exclusive.  The remedies provided in this Section 


are not exclusive.  The City may use any other remedies available to it under this 


Agreement, any performance or payment bonds, or any remedies available in law 


or equity in addition to, or in lieu of, the remedies provided in this Section. 


 


 


C. CITY OBLIGATIONS. 


 


1. Reimbursement to Developer for Off-Site Public Improvements. 


 


(a) Construction Costs.  The City shall reimburse Developer for the cost of 


constructing the Off-Site Improvements, up to a maximum reimbursement in the amount of 


$2,289,327.00, in accordance with the procedures in this Section.  Except as specified in 


subsection (c) below, the City shall not be required to pay more than $2,289,327.00 for the cost 


of constructing Off-Site Improvements, and any costs in excess of that amount shall be 


Developer's responsibility.  Request for reimbursement shall be made by Developer to City as 


provided in subsection (d) below. 


 


(b) Engineering Costs.  The City shall reimburse Developer for the cost of 


engineering services incurred by Developer in designing and constructing the Off-Site Public 


Improvements, up to a maximum reimbursement in the amount of $243,933, in accordance with 


the procedures in this Section.  Except as specified in subsection (c) below, the City shall not be 


required to pay more than $243,933 for the cost of engineering services, and any costs in excess 


of that amount shall be Developer's responsibility Request for reimbursement shall be made 


Developer to City as provided in subsection (d) below. 


 


(c) Contingency.  If the construction costs or engineering costs described in 


Sections C. 1 (a) and (b) will exceed the maximum amount specified in those subsections, and 


Developer has obtained prior written approval from the City to exceed those specified costs, then 


the City shall reimburse Developer for the additional construction or engineering costs, up to 


maximum additional reimbursements in the aggregate amount of $311,707.  Developer shall 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


10 


apply for any such additional reimbursement in accordance with the procedures specified in 


Sections C. 1 (a) and (b). 


 


(d) Request for Payment: As the Off-Site Public Improvements progress, 


Developer may make requests to the City for progress payments (and a final payment when the 


Off-Site Public Improvements are formally accepted by the City) not more than once per month.  


Developer’s application for reimbursement shall be submitted to a mutually agreed upon title 


company serving as escrow agent, the cost of which shall be a City Administrative Cost, and to 


the City Planning Director.  Developer's application shall include:  (1) a breakdown of all 


contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers performing work or providing material for 


which payment is requested, an itemization of the work performed and materials provided, the 


percentage of work performed or materials provided in that category and copies of all supporting 


invoices from all contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers requesting payment, together 


with  a certification by Developer and Developer's engineer that the requested application is true 


and correct and that the requested payments are being made in accordance with the standards and 


requirements of the construction contract and such other documentation and certification 


requested by the title company; and (2) valid lien waivers from all contractors, subcontractors 


and material suppliers performing work or providing material for which reimbursement is 


requested have been deposited in escrow with the title company.  Within forty-five days after 


submittal of a complete application to the title company demonstrating entitlement to 


reimbursement under this Section, and subject to approval by the City Planning Director that the 


payment request is in conformity with the provisions of this Agreement, the City shall make its 


reimbursement payment to the title company, which shall then issue payment to the contractors, 


subcontractors and material suppliers for whom payment is requested, up to a maximum total 


reimbursement as provided in subsections (a), (b) and (c) above.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 


prior to acceptance of the Off-Site Public Improvements by the City, the City shall reimburse 


Developer for only 90 percent of the reimbursement to which Developer is entitled under this 


Section.  Following acceptance of the Off-Site Public Improvements by the City, the City shall 


reimburse Developer for 100 percent of the reimbursement to which Developer is entitled under 


this Section. 


 


2. Reimbursement to Developer for Stormwater Management Improvements.   


 


(a) Construction Costs.  The City shall reimburse Developer for the cost of 


constructing the Stormwater Management Improvements, up to a maximum reimbursement in 


the amount of $1,247,220, in accordance with the procedures in this Section.  Except as specified 


in subsection (c) below, the City shall not be required to pay more than $1,247,220 for the cost 


of constructing Stormwater Management Improvements, and any costs in excess of that amount 


shall be Developer's responsibility.  Request for reimbursement shall be made by Developer to 


City as provided in subsection (d) below. 


 


(b) Engineering Costs.  The City shall reimburse Developer for the cost of 


engineering services incurred by Developer in designing and constructing the Stormwater 


Management Improvements, up to a maximum reimbursement in the amount of $124,722, in 


accordance with the procedures in this Section.  Except as specified in subsection (c) below, the 


City shall not be required to pay more than $124,722 for the cost of engineering services, and 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


11 


any costs in excess of that amount shall be Developer's responsibility.  Request for 


reimbursement shall be made Developer to City as provided in subsection (d) below. 


 


(c) Contingency.  If the construction costs or engineering costs described in 


Sections C. 2 (a) and (b) will exceed the maximum amount specified in those subsections, and 


Developer has obtained prior written approval from the City to exceed those specified costs, then 


the City shall reimburse Developer for the additional construction or engineering costs, up to 


maximum additional reimbursements in the aggregate amount of $210,355.  Developer shall 


apply for any such additional reimbursement in accordance with the procedures specified in 


Sections C. 2 (a) and (b). 


 


(d) Request for Payment: As the Stormwater Management Improvements 


progress, Developer may make requests to the City for progress payments (and a final payment 


when the Stormwater Management Improvements are formally accepted by the City) not more 


than once per month.  Developer’s application for reimbursement shall be submitted to a 


mutually agreed upon title company serving as escrow agent, the cost of which shall be a City 


Administrative Cost, and to the City Planning Director.  Developer's application shall include:  


(1) a breakdown of all contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers performing work or 


providing material for which payment is requested, an itemization of the work performed and 


materials provided, the percentage of work performed or materials provided in that category and 


copies of all supporting invoices from all contractors, subcontractors and material men 


requesting payment, together with  a certification by Developer and Developer's engineer that the 


requested application is true and correct and that the requested payments are being made in 


accordance with the standards and requirements of the construction contract and such other 


documentation and certification requested by the title company; and (2) valid lien waivers from 


all contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers performing work or providing material for 


which reimbursement is requested have been deposited in escrow with the title company.  Within 


forty-five days after submittal of a complete application to the title company demonstrating 


entitlement to reimbursement under this Section, and subject to approval by the City Planning 


Director that the payment request is in conformity with the provisions of this Agreement, the 


City shall make its reimbursement payment to the title company, which shall then issue payment 


to the contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers for whom payment is requested, up to a 


maximum total reimbursement as provided in subsections (a), (b) and (c) above.  


Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to acceptance of the Stormwater Management 


Improvements by the City, the City shall reimburse Developer for only 90 percent of the 


reimbursement to which Developer is entitled under this Section.  Following acceptance of the 


Stormwater Management Improvements by the City, the City shall reimburse Developer for 100 


percent of the reimbursement to which Developer is entitled under this Section. 


 


3. Municipal Revenue Obligation.  Following the completion of the Site Grading, 


Developer may provide to the City a written request for issuance of a Municipal Revenue 


Obligation, which request shall include Developer's certification of the cost of the Site Grading 


and documentation of Developer's payments to contractors for the Site Grading work.  Within 


forty-five days after submittal of a complete written request for issuance of the Municipal 


Revenue Obligation with the required certification and documentation, the City shall issue a 


Municipal Revenue Obligation to Developer, in the principal amount of the lesser of (1) the cost 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


12 


of the Site Grading work or (2) Five Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($550,000), in the form 


attached hereto as Attachment E, under the following terms and conditions: 


 


(a) The Municipal Revenue Obligation shall not bear interest.  


 


(b) Any payment on the Municipal Revenue Obligation which is due on any 


Payment Date shall be payable solely from and only to the extent that the City has received as of 


such Payment Date Excess Tax Increment, and such Excess Tax Increment has been 


appropriated by the Common Council to payment of the Municipal Revenue Obligation.   


 


(c) For purposes of the Municipal Revenue Obligation, a “Payment Date” 


shall mean each of the Scheduled Payment Dates set forth on a schedule to be prepared by the 


City and attached to the Municipal Revenue Obligation when issued.  The scheduled payment 


dates shall be prepared such that the payments on the Municipal Revenue Obligation are 


amortized over the remaining number of years that tax increment generated by the District may 


lawfully be allocated to make payments on the Municipal Revenue Obligation.  On each of the 


Payment Dates, the City shall pay to Developer the Excess Tax Increment, up to the Scheduled 


Payment Amount shown on the schedule attached to the Municipal Revenue Obligation, together 


with such additional amounts, if any, deferred from prior years as may be payable on the 


Payment Date as provided under the terms of the Municipal Revenue Obligation, that has been 


appropriated for that purpose by the Common Council in accordance with the requirements for 


revenue obligations.   


 


(d) The City covenants and agrees that Excess Tax Increment held by the City 


as of a given Payment Date shall not be appropriated for any other use, if not appropriated for the 


Municipal Revenue Obligation due as of such Payment Date, until the City has paid the 


Municipal Revenue Obligation payment due on the Payment Date in that year (including the 


Scheduled Payment Amount plus any additional amounts deferred from prior years and payable 


on that Payment Date), or until said Municipal Revenue Obligation has been paid.  The District 


shall not be terminated until the Municipal Revenue Obligation has been paid, or until the 


District must be terminated by law, whichever first occurs.  


 


D. TAX INCREMENT GUARANTEES. 


 


1. Anticipated City Borrowing. 


 


(a) The City intends to enter into the City Borrowing for the purposes of 


financing the Reimbursement for Off-Site Public Improvements and the Reimbursement for 


Stormwater Management Improvements. 


 


(b) The City intends to pay off the City Borrowing generally in accordance 


with the schedule shown on Attachment B.  Attachment B shows an anticipated schedule of City 


Borrowing, Annual Debt Service Payments, and Tax Increment.  The parties agree that 


Attachment B is based on estimates and forecasts that may or may not accurately reflect the 


actual City Borrowing or final schedule of payments.  Accordingly, the parties agree that the 


City may amend Attachment B to reflect the actual City Borrowing schedule and Annual Debt 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


13 


service schedule when City Borrowings are finalized.  It is further understood and agreed that 


this paragraph shall not preclude the City from any refinancing or restructuring of City 


Borrowing in order to take advantage of any increased cash flow to the District or lower interest 


rates. 


 


2. Developer Guarantees to City. 


 


(a)  Guarantee of Tax Increment.  Developer acknowledges and agrees that 


the Tax Increment received by the City from the District is intended to be sufficient to pay the 


Annual Debt Service on the City Borrowing.  It is further agreed that the Annual Debt Service on 


the City Borrowing be paid from Tax Increment generated by the District, and/or capitalized 


interest available under the City Borrowing, in accordance with Wis. Stat. sec. 66.1105. 


 


(b) Guarantee of Sufficient Actual Tax Increment to Pay Annual Debt Service.  


Developer guarantees that, beginning in the calendar year 2018, the Actual Tax Increment will 


be sufficient to fully pay the Annual Debt Service on City Borrowing.  If, in any calendar year 


beginning with calendar year 2018, the Actual Tax Increment received by the City and allocated 


as described in Section D. 3 is insufficient to pay the Annual Debt Service due that year, then 


Developer shall be required to pay to the City, and the City shall be entitled to draw on the Letter 


of Credit, the amount by which the Actual Tax Increment is insufficient to pay the Annual Debt 


Service due that year.  Withdrawals on the Letter of Credit may be made at any time within 30 


days before or after the due date of an Annual Debt Service Payment, and Developer's due date 


for making any required payment on Developer's guarantee, to avoid withdrawals on the Letter 


of Credit or interest charges, shall be 31 days before the due date of an Annual Debt Service 


payment.  The City shall provide Developer with written notice of any insufficiency in the 


Actual Tax Increment 45 days prior to the due date of an Annual Debt Service payment, or as 


soon thereafter as the amount of the insufficiency is known to the City. 


 


3. Allocation of Actual Tax Increment.  Actual Tax Increment shall be applied as 


follows: 


 


(a) In 2016 and 2017, all Actual Tax Increment shall be allocated to the City 


to pay City Administrative Costs and other project costs related to the District. 


 


(b) In 2018 through 2034, or until the District is terminated, whichever is 


sooner, Actual Tax Increment shall be allocated as follows: 


 


(1) First, to pay City Administrative Costs. 


 


(2) Second, to pay Annual Debt Service on City Borrowing for 


reimbursing Developer for the Stormwater Management Improvements.   


 


(3) Third, to pay Annual Debt Service on City Borrowing for 


reimbursing Developer for the Off-Site Public Improvements.  


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


14 


(4) Fourth, "Excess Tax Increment" shall be available for payment of 


the Municipal Revenue Obligation referred to in Section C.3 of this Agreement.  


For purposes of this Agreement, "Excess Tax Increment" shall mean Actual Tax 


Increment remaining each year after paying Annual Debt Service on City 


Borrowing each year.  Excess Tax Increment remaining after the City has paid the 


Municipal Revenue Obligation payment due on the Payment Date in a given year 


(including the Scheduled Payment Amount plus any additional amounts deferred 


from prior years and payable on that Payment Date) may be used by the City to 


pay any District project costs it may chose, in its discretion. 


 


4. Letter of Credit.   


 


(a) Developer shall provide an irrevocable letter of credit issued pursuant to 


Chapter 405 of the Wisconsin Statutes to the City to secure Developer's tax increment guarantee 


obligations under Section D.2(b) of this Agreement.  The letter of credit shall be in a form 


acceptable to the City, and shall be issued by an entity that is acceptable to the City, or that has a 


rating of its long-term unsecured debt not lower than A1 by Moody’s Investors Service or A+ by 


Standard and Poor’s.  It shall be payable at sight to the City, and shall bear an expiration date not 


earlier than three years after its initial issuance.  The letter of credit shall be payable to the City at 


any time upon presentation of the following:  (1) a sight draft drawn on the issuing bank in an 


amount to which the City is entitled under this Agreement; (2) an affidavit executed by a person 


authorized by the City stating that monies are due from Developer pursuant to the guarantee 


obligations in Section D.2(b); and (3) the letter of credit.  After the initial term, Developer shall 


timely renew the letter of credit for additional terms of not less than one year, so that the amount 


of the letter of credit is at all times not less than the amount required by this Agreement.  The 


initial and each renewed or replacement letter of credit shall by express language be 


automatically extended without amendment for a period of one year from its expiration date, 


unless at least 45 days before such expiration date the issuer of the letter of credit notifies the 


City in writing that the letter of credit will not be extended for an additional one year period, or 


notifies the City in writing that the letter of credit will be renewed or replaced by a letter of credit 


in an amount that is less than the amount required by this Agreement, which amount shall be 


specified in such written notice.  Upon receipt of notice that the letter of credit will not be 


extended for an additional one year period, or will be extended, renewed or replaced in an 


amount that is less than the amount required by this Agreement, the City may draw upon the 


letter of credit an amount sufficient to secure performance of Developer’s remaining guarantee 


obligations.   


 


(b) The amount of the initial and each renewed or replacement letter of credit 


shall be equal to the total principal and interest payments that remain unpaid on all remaining 


Annual Debt Service Payments on City Borrowing.  For example, based upon the Schedule of 


Annual Debt Service Payments attached as Attachment B, the amount of the initial letter of 


credit would be $6,765,224.60.  However, the amount of the required letter of credit may be 


reduced by the amount of the Annual Debt Service that will be paid by Actual Tax Increment 


that has been created within the District, and allocated to pay Annual Debt Service as provided in 


Section D.3.  The Annual Debt Service payments that will be paid by Actual Tax Increment that 


has been created within the District shall be calculated by the City, using the actual Value 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


15 


Increment that has been created within the District at the time the required amount of the Letter 


of Credit is calculated, using the mil rate effective at that time.   


 


5. Tax Agreement.  Developer shall execute and deliver to the City for recording 


with the Dane County Register of Deeds the Tax Agreement attached as Attachment D.  


 


6. Payments Made Under Sections D.2(b).  Amounts paid to the City under Section 


D.2(b) or D.4 of this Agreement shall, during the life of the District, be used and allocated in the 


same way Actual Tax Increment is used and allocated pursuant to this Agreement. 


 


E. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO AGREEMENT OBLIGATIONS. 


 


All of the following must occur before either party’s obligations under this Agreement 


shall become effective.   


 


1. The City and Developer must approve and execute this Agreement. 


 


2. Developer must acquire fee simple title to the Property. 


 


3. A Tax Increment District must be fully and finally approved by the City, the Joint 


Review Board and the Wisconsin Department of Revenue pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1105.  The 


Tax Increment District must include the Property within its boundaries.  The project plan for the 


District must include, as eligible project costs, the Off-Site Public Improvements, the Stormwater 


Management Improvements, and payment of the Municipal Revenue Obligation as provided for 


by this Agreement.   


 


4. A plat, certified survey map or series of certified survey maps that conform 


substantially to the Plat must be approved by the City and all other approving and objecting 


authorities pursuant to and in accordance with Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 


 


5. Developer must deliver to the City the letter of credit required by Section B.1(m) 


of this Agreement. 


 


6. Developer must deliver to the City the letter of credit required by Section D.4 of 


this Agreement. 


 


7. The lands needed for construction of the Jackson Street improvements must be 


dedicated to the City. 


 


8. The existing access rights to U.S. Highway 51 and State Highway 138 have been 


acquired to the extent needed to construct the Off-Site Public Improvements.   


 


9. Developer has received all approvals and permits needed from the Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and any and all 


other governmental entities needed to construct the Public Improvements.   


 Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  0"







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


16 


10. Developer has received, in accordance with the procedures in Section B.(1)(c), a 


bid for construction of the Off-Site Public Improvements and the Stormwater Management 


Improvements (the “Bid”) that does not exceed the aggregate amount of $4,058,609 (not 


including engineering costs).  If the Bid exceeds $4,058,609, then this condition may 


alternatively be satisfied by increasing the letter of credit required by Section B.1.(m) by the 


amount by which the Bid exceeds $4,058,608.  


 


10.11. Developer delivers documentation to the City demonstrating that Lot 2 of the Plat 


has been purchased by Walmarta general merchandise retailer that is ranked by the National 


Retail Federation to be among the top 25 retailers in the United States based on gross sales 


revenue. 


 


12. Walmart has entered into an agreement with the City, that is acceptable to the 


City, and that provides for the following:  (1) Walmart will complete construction of and open 


for business a new Walmart on Lot 2 conforming to the General Development Plan and Specific 


Implementation Plan that have been approved by the City for the new Walmart store on Lot 2 of 


the Plat, and as such plans may be amended by the City, by not later than December 31, 2017; 


(2) Walmart provides a tax increment guarantee to the City that Lot 2 of the Plat will have an 


assessed value for property tax purposes of not less than $12,000,000, by not later than January 


1, 2018 (failure to do so requiring Walmart to pay the City annually (and for each calendar year 


until the year in which the assessed value of Lot 2 of the Plat equals $12,000,000) the amount of 


property taxes that would have been generated if the assessed value of Lot 2 of the Plat equaled 


$12,000,000); and (3) the City agrees that, in the event of Developer’s failure to timely complete 


the Public Improvements, the City will either (a) complete the Public Improvements or (b) allow 


Walmart to complete the Public Improvements, in either case, funding the Public Improvements 


from the City and Developer sources described in this Agreement. 


 


11.13. Developer delivers documentation to the City demonstrating that three lots in the 


Plat (in addition to Lot 2) have been purchased by commercial enterprises. 


 


12.14. Developer and all others having an interest in the Property must execute and 


deliver to the City for recording with the Dane County Register of Deeds, a Tax Agreement in 


the form attached as Attachment D. 


 


If the events described in this Section E are not satisfied by AugustJune 30, 2015, then this 


Agreement shall be null and void. 


 


F. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 


 


1. Authorization.  Developer warrants that Developer’s execution, delivery and 


performance of this Agreement have been duly authorized and do not conflict with, result in a 


violation of, or constitute a default under any provision of Developer’s articles of organization or 


membership agreements, or any agreement or other instrument binding upon Developer, or any 


law, governmental regulation, court decree, or order applicable to Developer or to the Property. 


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


17 


G. GENERAL CONDITIONS. 


 


1. No Vested Rights Granted.  Except as provided by law, or as expressly provided 


in this Agreement, no vested rights to develop the Project shall inure to Developer by virtue of 


this Agreement.  Nor does the City warrant that Developer is entitled to any City approvals 


required for development of the Property or construction of the Project as a result of this 


Agreement. 


 


2. Binding Effect / Assignment.  The obligations of Developer and the City under 


this Agreement shall be binding on their respective successors and assigns.  Developer may not 


assign its benefits or obligations under this Agreement without the express prior written approval 


of the City, and any unapproved assignment is void. 


 


3. No Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed or 


constitute a waiver of any other provision, nor shall it be deemed or constitute a continuing 


waiver unless expressly provided for by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by both 


the City and Developer, nor shall the waiver of any default under this Agreement be deemed a 


waiver of any subsequent default or defaults.  Either party’s failure to exercise any right under 


this Agreement shall not constitute the approval of any wrongful act by the other party hereto. 


 


4. Amendment/Modification.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by 


a written amendment approved and executed by the City and Developer. 


 


5. Remedies upon Default.  A default is defined herein as a party’s breach of, or 


failure to comply with, the terms of this Agreement and the failure to cure such breach within 


thirty (30) days after the date of written notice from the non-defaulting party.  The parties reserve 


all remedies at law or in equity necessary to cure any default or remedy any damages or losses 


under this Agreement.  Rights and remedies are cumulative, and the exercise of one or more 


rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise of other rights or remedies.  Remedies include, 


but are not limited to, drawing on the letters of credit, and charging Developer, on all amounts 


due to the City not paid by the due date, interest at the rate of 2 percent over the rate then payable 


by the City under the City Borrowing, from the due date until the date the unpaid amounts are 


paid in full. 


 


6. Entire Agreement/Appendices Incorporated.  This written Agreement and the 


attachments hereto, and the Pre-Annexation Agreement executed April 18 and 19, 2013, shall 


constitute the entire Agreement between Developer and the City as of the date hereof. 


 


7. Severability.  If any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is held by the 


courts to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, such illegality or unenforceability shall not affect 


the validity of any other part, term, or provision and the rights of the parties will be construed as 


if the invalid part, term, or provision was never part of the Agreement.  


 


8. Immunity.  Nothing contained in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of the City’s 


sovereign immunity under applicable law. 


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


18 


9. Indemnification.  Developer, and its successors and assigns, shall indemnify, hold 


harmless and defend the City and its officers, agents and employees from any and all liability 


suits, actions, claims, demands, losses, costs, damages and expenses or liabilities of every kind 


and description, including attorney costs and fees, for claims of any character including liability 


and expenses in connection with the loss of life, personal injury or damage to property, or any of 


them, brought because of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any persons or 


property on account of or arising out of the construction of the Project occasioned wholly or in 


part by any act or omission on Developer's part or on the part of its agents, contractors, 


subcontractors, invitees or employees, at any time occurring on, at or in the Property, except as 


are a result of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any officer, agent or employee of the 


City.  The City shall be entitled to appear in any proceedings to defend itself against such claims, 


and all costs, expenses and reasonable attorney fees incurred by the City in connection with such 


defense shall be paid by Developer to the City.  The foregoing indemnity provisions shall survive 


the cancellation or termination of this Agreement as to all matters arising or accruing prior to 


such cancellation or termination and the foregoing indemnity shall survive in the event the City 


elects to exercise any of the remedies as provided under this Agreement following default 


hereunder.  Developer shall provide insurance coverage in compliance with the City’s Contract 


Insurance Requirements attached as Attachment F. 


 


10. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be deemed 


effective given in writing and personally delivered or mailed by U.S. Mail as follows: 


 


To Developer:   Dennis Steinkraus 


161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 


Verona, WI  53593  


 


   Developer's Attorney  Daniel O’CallaghanRonald Trachtenberg 


       One South Pinckney33 E. Main Street, Suite 


700500 


 P.O. Box 2038 


 Madison, WI 53703-425753701-2038 


  


To the City:   Laurie Sullivan, Finance Director 


City of Stoughton 


381 East Main Street 


Stoughton, WI  53589  


 


   City Attorney   Matthew P. Dregne 


       222 W. Washington Avenue, Suite 900 


       P.O. Box 1784 


       Madison, WI 53701-1784 


 


11. Recordation.  The City may record a copy of this Agreement, or a memorandum 


thereof, in the office of the Dane County Register of Deeds.  


 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


19 


12. Personal Jurisdiction and Venue.  Personal jurisdiction and venue for any civil 


action commenced by either party arising out of this Agreement shall be deemed to be proper 


only if such action is commenced in Circuit Court for Dane County unless it is determined that 


such Court lacks jurisdiction.  Developer hereby consents to personal jurisdiction in Dane 


County.  Developer also expressly waives the right to bring such action in, or to remove such 


action to, any other court whether state or federal, unless it is determined that the Circuit Court 


for Dane County lack jurisdiction. 


 


13. Ratification.  Developer hereby approves and ratifies all actions taken to date by 


the City, its officers, employees and agents in connection with the District, and in connection 


with the zoning and other approvals relating to the Property and the Project. 


 


14. Compliance with Laws.  Developer shall comply with all federal, state and local 


laws with respect to the Plat and the Project, including but not limited to laws governing building 


and construction, the environment, nondiscrimination, and employment and contracting 


practices, to the extent they are applicable. 


 


15. No Partnership.  The City does not, in any way or for any purpose, become a 


partner, employer, principal, agent or joint venturer of or with Developer. 


 


16. Good Faith.  Both parties to this Agreement shall exercise good faith in 


performing any obligation that party has assumed under the terms of this Agreement including, 


but not limited to, the performance of obligations that require the exercise of discretion and 


judgment. 


 


17. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state of 


Wisconsin. 


 


18. No Private Right or Cause of Action.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be inter-


preted or construed to create any private right or any private cause of action by or on behalf of 


any person not a party hereto. 


 


19. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date and year first 


written above. 


 


20. Term.  Except as provided in Section E, this Agreement shall continue in full 


force and effect until such time as Developer’s obligations under Sections B and D of this 


Agreement, and the City’s obligations under Section C of this Agreement, have been fully 


satisfied, at which point this Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect.  At 


that time, if this Agreement has been recorded the parties shall jointly execute and record a 


release of the Agreement. 


 


21. Status of January Agreement.  The Agreement to Undertake Development dated 


as of November 13January 29, 2014 is superseded and replaced by this Agreement. 


 







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


20 


22. Construction of Agreement.  Each party participated fully in the drafting of each 


and every part of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed strictly in favor of or 


against either party.  It shall be construed simply and fairly to each party.  


 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 


year and date first set forth above, and by so signing this Agreement, certify that they have been 


duly authorized by their respective entities to execute this Agreement on their behalf. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


CITY: 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Dane County, Wisconsin 


 


 


By       


Donna Olson, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


       


Lana C. Kropf, City Clerk 


 


 
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"







C:\Users\lkropf\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZNVES928\36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


21 


 


 


 


DEVELOPER: 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC 


 


 


By       


David Jenkins, Managing Partner 


 


 


Provision has been made to pay the liability that will accrue under this Agreement: 


 


 


Countersigned: 


 


____________________________    ___________________ 


Laurie Sullivan, Finance Director     Date 


 


 


 


 


 


Approved as to Form: 


 


__________________________ 


Matthew P. Dregne 


City Attorney 


 


 


 


 


Attachments: 


A – Description of the Property 


B  Schedule of Annual Debt Service Payments 


C  Form of Municipal Revenue Obligation 


D  Form of Tax Agreement 


E  Prevailing Wage Rate Determination 


F  City Contract Insurance Requirements 


 


 


 
 







 
 


Forward Development Group 


161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 


Verona, WI 53593 


 


 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 


0605151356 


 


ATTACHMENT A 


 DESCRIPTION OF AMENDED GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN BOUNDARY 
 


 


Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 3430, Lots 1, 2, and 3, Certified Survey Map No. 3435, 


Lot 1, Certified Survey Map No. 9632, and Part of the Northwest Quarter, Northeast Quarter, 


Southeast Quarter and Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 01, Township 05 


North, Range 10 East, City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particularly described 


as follows: 


 


Commencing at the Southeast Corner of said Section 01; thence North 00 degrees 17 minutes 13 


seconds West along the East line of the Southeast Quarter of Section 01, aforesaid, 185.11 feet; 


thence North 87 degrees 07 minutes 28 seconds West, 33.05 feet to the Westerly right-of-way 


line of Veek Road; thence continuing North 87 degrees 07 minutes 28 seconds West, 260.52 


feet; thence South 00 degrees 16 minutes 13 seconds East, 5.01 feet to the Northerly right-of-


way line of State Trunk Highway ‘138’; thence North 87 degrees 07 minutes 28 seconds West, 


21.50 feet; thence South 00 degrees 12 minutes 45 seconds East, 8.67 feet; thence North 89 


degrees 53 minutes 46 seconds West, 343.76 feet; thence North 87 degrees 53 minutes 44 


seconds West, 1054.08 feet; thence North 02 degrees 12 minutes 57 seconds East, 63.44 feet; 


thence North 49 degrees 55 minutes 54 seconds East, 297.24 feet; thence South 87 degrees 53 


minutes 44 seconds East, 156.18 feet; thence North 00 degrees 10 minutes 51 seconds West, 


468.76 feet; thence South 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, 32.23 feet to a point on a 


curve; thence Northwesterly 337.17 feet along an arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 


1669.65 feet, the chord bearing North 55 degrees 34 minutes 42 seconds West, 336.60 feet; 


thence South 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, 37.73 feet; thence North 00 degrees 00 


minutes 00 seconds East, 130.76 feet; thence North 49 degrees 24 minutes 07 seconds East, 


363.28 feet; thence South 44 degrees 06 minutes 47 seconds East, 30.27 feet to a point of curve;         


thence Southeasterly 773.77 feet along an arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 960.00 


feet, the chord bearing South 67 degrees 12 minutes 12 seconds East, 752.99 feet; thence North 


00 degrees 06 minutes 55 seconds West, 886.79 feet; thence South 89 degrees 53 minutes 05 


seconds West, 230.62 feet; thence North 45 degrees 33 minutes 02 seconds West, 245.18 feet; 


thence North 44 degrees 26 minutes 58 seconds East, 217.29 feet; thence North 30 degrees 35 


minutes 56 seconds East, 51.27 feet; thence South 86 degrees 41 minutes 54 seconds East, 


257.20 feet to the West line of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 8144; thence South 00 degrees 


05 minutes 12 seconds East along said West line, 195.44 feet to the Southwest corner of said Lot 


2 also being the Northwest corner of Lot 4, Certified Survey Map No. 9632; thence South 00 


degrees 06 minutes 55 seconds East along said West line of Certified Survey Map No. 9632, a 







 
 


Forward Development Group 


161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 


Verona, WI 53593 


 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 23 


0605151356 


distance of 888.03 feet; thence South 87 degrees 57 minutes 29 seconds East, 1.15 feet; thence 


South 00 degrees 19 minutes 58 seconds West, 198.79 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 2, 


Certified Survey Map No. 9632; thence North 89 degrees 42 minutes 22 seconds East along the 


South line of said Lot 2 a distance of 519.75 feet to the Westerly right-of-way line of U.S.  


 


Highway ‘51’; thence South 01 degrees 40 minutes 47 seconds West along said right-of-way 


line, 170.46 feet to a point of curve; thence Southeasterly 487.72 feet along an arc of a curve to 


the left, having a radius of 981.47 feet, the chord bearing South 12 degrees 31 minutes 39 


seconds East, 482.72 feet to the Westerly right-of-way line of Veek Road; thence South 00 


degrees 17 minutes 13 seconds East along said right-of-way line, 322.71 feet to the point of 


beginning. 


 


Said parcel contains 1,609,687 square feet or 36.953 acres. 


 


 


 







ATTACHMENT B 


 


SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS 


 


 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 


0605151356 


 







ATTACHMENT B 


 


SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS 


 


 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 
0605151356 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 26 


0605151356 


 


ATTACHMENT C 


 


FORM OF MUNICIPAL REVENUE OBLIGATION 


 


 


TO AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT 


(Kettle Park West Development) 


 


FORM OF MUNICIPAL REVENUE OBLIGATION 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


MUNICIPAL REVENUE OBLIGATION SERIES 20___ 


$___________________ 


 


 


THIS MUNICIPAL REVENUE OBLIGATION (the “Obligation”) is issued pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0621 


this _______ day of ________________, 20___ by the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “City”) 


to Kettle Park West LLC, its successors and assigns (“Developer”). 


 


WITNESSETH: 


 


A.  The City and Developer have entered into an Agreement to Undertake Development dated 


_________________, 2014 (the “Development Agreement”). 
 


B. This Obligation is issued by the City pursuant to the Development Agreement. 
 


C. Terms that are capitalized in this Obligation that are not defined in this Obligation and that are 


defined in the Development Agreement shall have the meanings assigned to such terms by the 


Development Agreement. 


 


1. Promise to Pay. The City shall pay to Developer the principal amount of 


$__________________, together with interest thereon at a rate of zero percent (0 %) per annum, solely 


from Excess Tax Increment, in Scheduled Payments in accordance with Schedule 1 attached hereto and 


made a part hereof.  To the extent that on any Payment Date the City is unable to make a payment from 


Excess Tax Increment at least equal to the Scheduled Payment due on such date as a result of having 


received, as of such date, insufficient Excess Tax Increment, or as the result of the City Council not 


having appropriated sufficient Excess Tax Increment, such failure shall not constitute a default under 


this Obligation and, except as hereinafter provided, the City shall have no obligation under this 


Obligation, or otherwise, to subsequently pay any such deficiency unless the deficiency is the direct 


result of the failure of Dane County to timely remit the proper amount of Tax Increment, in which case, 


such deficiency shall be paid promptly upon remittance by Dane County. Any payments on the 


Municipal Revenue Obligation, which are due on any Payment Date, shall be payable solely from and 


only to the extent that, as of such Payment Date, the City has received Excess Tax Increment. If, on any 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 27 


0605151356 


Payment Date there is insufficient Excess Tax Increment to make the scheduled payment due on such 


date, or if the City Council shall not otherwise appropriate sufficient Excess Tax Increment to make the 


scheduled payment due on such date in full, the amount of such deficiency in the scheduled payment 


shall be deferred and shall be paid with interest at a rate equal to zero percent (0%) per annum, on the 


next Payment Date on which the City has Excess Tax Increment in excess of the amount necessary to 


make the scheduled payment due on such Payment Date, and if such deficiency has not been paid in 


full by the final Payment Date as set forth on Schedule 1, then the term of this Obligation shall be 


extended to include additional successive payment dates on which any Excess Tax Increment will be 


applied to the payment of such accrued and unpaid deficiencies in the scheduled payments to be made 


hereunder. In no case, however, shall the term of this Obligation and the City's obligation to make 


payments hereunder, extend beyond the termination date of the District, (as defined in the Tax 


Increment Law). Nor shall the City be obligated to pay any amount not appropriated for such purpose 


by the City Council.  This Obligation shall terminate and the City's obligation to make any payments 


under this Obligation shall be discharged, and the City shall have no obligation and incur no liability to 


make any payments hereunder, after the termination date of the District.  The District shall not be 


terminated until this Municipal Revenue Obligation has been paid, or until the District must be 


terminated by law, whichever occurs first. 
 


2. Limited Obligation of City. This Obligation shall be payable solely from Excess Tax 


Increment, and shall not constitute a charge against the City's general credit or taxing power. The City 


shall not be subject to any liability hereunder, or be deemed to have obligated itself to pay Developer 


any amounts from any funds, except the Excess Tax Increment, and then only to the extent and in the 


manner herein specified.  
 


3. Subject to Annual Appropriations.  Each payment under this Obligation shall be subject 


to annual appropriation by the City Council in accordance with the requirements for revenue 


obligations and in a manner approved by the City's bond counsel. 
 


4. Prepayment Option.  To satisfy in full the City's obligations under this Obligation, the 


City shall have the right to prepay all or a portion of the outstanding principal balance of this 


Obligation at any time, at par and without penalty. 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 28 


0605151356 


 


5. Miscellaneous.  This Obligation is subject to the Tax Increment Law and to the 


Development Agreement. 
 


 


Dated this _______ day of ______________, ________. 


 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 


 


By        


Donna Olson, Mayor 


 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


        


Lana C. Kropf, City Clerk 


 


 


 


Attachment – Schedule 1 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 29 


0605151356 


 


 


Schedule 1 


 


 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 30 


0605151356 


 


 


 


ATTACHMENT D 


FORM OF TAX AGREEMENT 


TAX AGREEMENT 


THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the ________ 


day of ______________, 2014 (the "Agreement"), by and 


between the City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal 


corporation (the "City"), and Kettle Park West, LLC (the 


"Owner"), a Wisconsin limited liability company. 


RECITALS 


A. Owner is the sole owner of property (the 


"Property") in the City of Stoughton, more particularly 


described in Exhibit A. 


B. Owner and the City have entered into or are 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA 


RETURN TO 


Matthew P. Dregne 


Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 


P.O. Box 1784 


Madison, WI 53701-1784 


P.I.N. 


simultaneously entering into an agreement relating to the development of the Property entitled Agreement to 


Undertake Development (Kettle Park West Development) (hereafter the "TID Agreement").  The TID 


Agreement provides that the City may incur principal debt service obligations in the estimated amount of 


$5,127,264 ("City Debt Service") to assist Owner in funding offsite and on-site public improvements, and to 


pay for certain improvements to be constructed by the City, as described in the TID Agreement, subject to 


repayment of such City Debt Service out of tax increment generated from the Property. 


C. Owner and the City wish to enter into this Agreement concerning preservation of the taxable 


status of the Property to ensure repayment of the City Debt Service. 


D. The City's obligations under the TID Agreement are conditioned on Owner signing and 


recording this Agreement. 


E. The City has provided and shall continue to provide public health, safety, fire and police 


protection, streets and street maintenance, snow removal, and other governmental services ("Municipal 


Services") with respect to the Property that are funded by property taxes. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals, and the mutual promises, obligations and benefits 


provided under this Agreement and the TID Agreement, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby 


acknowledged, Owner and the City agree as follows: 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 31 


0605151356 


1. Recitals Incorporated.  The recitals stated above are incorporated in this Agreement by reference. 


2. Representations and Warranties by Owner.  Owner represents and warrants that Owner:  (1) is a 


Wisconsin limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin; (2) has 


taken all action necessary to enter into this Agreement; (3) has duly authorized the individual signers of this 


Agreement to do so; and (4) is the sole owner of the Property, in fee simple. 


3. Tax Status of the Property.  The Property shall be subject to property taxation and shall not be 


exempt from property taxation, in full or in part, except as required by law or as expressly set forth in this 


Agreement until the City Debt Service is retired.  Owner shall take all reasonable actions to assure that the 


Property shall not be exempt from property taxation, in full or in part, except as required by law or as expressly 


set forth in this Agreement until the City Debt Service is retired.  Owner shall not submit any request or 


application for property tax exemption of the Property, in full or in part, challenge the status of the Property as 


fully subject to property taxation, or seek any ruling by a court or any statutory change that would entitle the 


Property to exemption, in full or part. 


4. Payment for Municipal Services If Property Becomes Tax Exempt.  If in any year (the 


"Valuation Year") prior to retirement of the City Debt Service, the Property is exempt from property taxation, in 


full or in part, Owner shall pay the City, as a payment for Municipal Services provided by the City with respect 


to the Property ("Payment for Municipal Services"), the difference between (1) the amount of property taxes, if 


any, on the Property, actually received by the City from Owner for the Valuation Year, and (2) the amount of 


property taxes on the Property that the City would have received for the Valuation Year if the Property were 


fully subject to property taxation.  The City shall send Owner an invoice for the Payment for Municipal 


Services due.  One-half of the Payment for Municipal Services shall be due on January 31 of the year after the 


Valuation Year.  The balance of the Payment for Municipal Services shall be due on July 31 of the year after the 


Valuation Year.  Each payment shall be deemed made when actually received by the City.  Any payment made 


by check shall not be deemed made until the check has cleared all banks.  Any amount due that is not paid on 


time shall bear interest in the same manner and at the same rate as provided by law for unpaid property taxes.  


The Payment for Municipal Services shall constitute payment for Municipal Services provided with respect to 


the Property during the Valuation Year.  The City and Owner acknowledge and agree that this Payment for 


Municipal Services would constitute a reasonable and appropriate means of carrying out the intent of the parties 


and would fairly and reasonably compensate the City for the Municipal Services provided during the Valuation 


Year. 


5. Calculation of Property Taxes As If Property Were Not Exempt Prior to Retirement of the City 


Debt Service.  Prior to retirement of the City Debt Service, if it becomes necessary to calculate the amount of 


property taxes on the Property that the City would have received if the Property were fully subject to property 


taxation, this amount shall be calculated as follows:  (1) The fair market value of the Property as of January 1 of 


the Valuation Year shall be determined, in the same manner as provided by law for property that is fully 


taxable, by the City Assessor or, if the City Assessor is unable or unwilling to do so, by a competent and 


impartial appraiser selected by the City in its sole discretion.  (2) The fair market value, as so determined, shall 


be divided by the average assessment ratio for the year for property in the City, as determined by the Wisconsin 


Department of Revenue (for purposes of this Agreement the result shall be the "Equalized Value").  (3) The 


Equalized Value shall be multiplied by the mil rate at which taxable property in the City is taxed to levy taxes 


for all taxing jurisdictions to which the Property is subject for the Valuation Year.  That amount shall be 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 32 


0605151356 


deemed the amount of property taxes on the Property that the City would have received if the Property were 


fully taxable. 


6. Binding Effect of Calculation; Dispute Resolution.  The amount of any Payment for Municipal 


Services, determined as provided in this Agreement, shall be binding on the parties unless determined to be 


excessive in an arbitration proceeding conducted in accordance with chapter 788, Wisconsin Statutes, or any 


successor statute, by a single arbitrator, chosen by mutual agreement of the Parties or, if they do not agree, by 


the Circuit Court for Dane County, Wisconsin, on application of either party.  The arbitrator shall be an assessor 


or appraiser licensed by the State of Wisconsin with at least ten years experience in the valuation of commercial 


property.  Any demand for arbitration shall be made within thirty days after an invoice for Payment of 


Municipal Services is sent by the City to Owner.  If a demand for arbitration is not made within that time, the 


parties shall be deemed to have waived arbitration.  The party demanding arbitration shall bear all the costs of 


arbitration.  Chapter 788, Wisconsin Statutes, or any successor statute, shall govern the arbitration proceeding, 


except that Owner and the City each waive any right to trial by jury.  Any other dispute between the parties 


arising out of, related to, or connected with this Agreement shall be arbitrated in the same manner. 


7. Special Assessment If Any Required Payment for Municipal Services Is Not Timely Made.  Any 


Payment for Municipal Services that is not made when due shall entitle the City to levy a special assessment 


against the Property for the amount due, plus interest.  Owner hereby consents to the levy of any such special 


assessment, and pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0703(7)(b), waives any right to notice of or any hearing on any such 


special assessment. 


8. Indemnification.  Owner shall indemnify the City for all amounts of attorneys' fees and expenses 


and expert fees and expenses incurred in enforcing this Agreement. 


9. Remedies.  The City shall have all remedies provided by this Agreement, and provided at law or 


in equity, necessary to cure any default or remedy any damages under this Agreement. 


10. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date the Agreement is signed 


by both parties and shall continue until the City Debt Service is retired unless terminated by mutual written 


agreement.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in the event that Owner or any subsequent owner 


of the Property or any part of the Property, desires to terminate this Agreement prior to retirement of the City 


Debt Service, such Owner may request the City to calculate the amount of property taxes that must be generated 


by the Property (or the relevant part of the Property) to prepay the outstanding City Debt Service, and this 


Agreement shall terminate upon payment to the City of the amount so calculated. 


11. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is binding on the successors and assigns of the parties, 


including, but not limited to, any subsequent owner of the Property, any part of the Property, or any real 


property interest in the Property or any part of the Property.  If at any time the Property has more than one 


owner, any Payment for Municipal Services due under this Agreement for any Valuation Year shall be allocated 


among the owners in proportion to the fair market value of their property interests as of January 1 of the 


Valuation Year, as determined under section 6 of this Agreement. 


12. Recording.  The City may record this Agreement with the Register of Deeds for Dane County.  


Owner shall pay the cost of recording this Agreement. 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 33 


0605151356 


13. Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Agreement encompasses the entire agreement of the 


parties.  Any amendment hereto shall be made in writing, signed by both parties. 


14. Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, the rest 


of the Agreement shall remain in effect. 


15. Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be deemed a continuing waiver of that 


breach or a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement. 


16. Interpretation of Agreement.  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is the product of joint 


negotiations.  If any dispute arises concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, neither party shall be 


deemed the drafter of this Agreement for purposes of its interpretation. 


17. Notices.  Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed given when 


deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the party at the address stated below or when actually 


received by the party, whichever is first.  The addresses are: 


 To City: 


 


Laurie Sullivan, Finance Director 


City of Stoughton 


381 East Main Street 


Stoughton, WI 53589 


 City Attorney: Matthew P. Dregne 


222 W. Washington Avenue, Suite 900 


P.O. Box 1784 


Madison, WI 53701-1784 


 To Owner: Dennis Steinkraus 


161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 


Verona, WI 53593 


 Owner's Attorney: Daniel O'Callaghan 


Michael Best & Friedrich LLP 


1 South Pinckney Street, Suite 700 


Madison, WI 53701-1806 


Addresses may be changed by notice given in the manner provided in this section. 


18. Governing Law.  This Agreement has been negotiated and signed in the State of Wisconsin and 


shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the United States and the State of 


Wisconsin. 


(Signature pages follow.) 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 34 


0605151356 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first set forth above. 


 


 CITY: 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 


By  


Donna Olson, Mayor 


By  


Lana C. Kropf, City Clerk 


 


 


ACKNOWLEDGMENT 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN 


 


COUNTY OF DANE 


 


Personally came before me this _______ day of _______________, 2015, the above-named Donna 


Olson and Lana C. Kropf, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 


acknowledged the same. 


 


      


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My Commission:    


 


 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


_______________________ 


Matthew P. Dregne 


City Attorney 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 35 


0605151356 


 


 OWNER: 


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC 


 


By  


David Jenkins, Managing Partner 


 


 


ACKNOWLEDGMENT 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN 


 


COUNTY OF DANE 


 


Personally came before me this _______ day of _______________, 2015, the above-named David 


Jenkins, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same. 


 


      


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


My Commission:    


 


 


 


 


Exhibit A – Description of the Property 


 


 


 


 


 


This instrument drafted by: 


Matthew P. Dregne 


Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 


P.O. Box 1784 


Madison, WI 53701 


608/256-0226 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 36 


0605151356 


Exhibit A 


 


Description of the Property 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 37 


0605151356 


 


ATTACHMENT E 


 


PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 38 


0605151356 


 


ATTACHMENT F 


 


CITY CONTRACT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 


 


INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  


Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, the Contractor shall, at its sole expense, maintain in 


effect at all times during the performance of the Work, insurance coverage with limits not less than 


those set forth below with insurers and under forms of policies set forth below. 


a. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance - The Contractor shall cover 


or insure under the applicable labor laws relating to worker's compensation insurance, all of 


their employees in accordance with the law in the State of Wisconsin. The Contractor shall 


provide statutory coverage for work related injuries and employer's liability insurance with 


limits of $1,000,000 each accident, $1,000,000 disease policy limit, and $1,000,000 disease 


each employee. 


b. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance - The Contractor 


shall provide and maintain the following commercial general liability and automobile liability 


insurance: 


Coverage - Coverage for commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance 


shall be at least as broad as the following: 


1. Insurance Services Office (ISO) Commercial General Liability Coverage 


(Occurrence Form CG 0001) 


2. Insurance Services Office (ISO) Business Auto Coverage (Form CA 0001), 


covering. Symbol 1 (any vehicle) 


Limits - The Contractor shall maintain limits no less than the following: 


1. General Liability - One million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 


($2,000,000 general aggregate if applicable) for bodily injury, personal injury 


and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other 


form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit 


shall apply separately to the project/location (with the ISO CG 2503, or ISO 


CG 2504, or insurer's equivalent endorsement provided to the City of 


Stoughton or the general aggregate including product-completed operations 


aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 


2. Automobile Liability - One million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and 


property damage per occurrence limit covering all vehicles to be used in 


relationship to the Agreement_ 


3. Umbrella Liability — Five million dollars ($5,000,000) following form 


excess of the primary General Liability, Automobile Liability and 


Employers Liability Coverages. Coverage is to duplicate he requirements as 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 39 


0605151356 


set forth herein. 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 40 


0605151356 


c. Required Provisions - The general liability umbrella liability and automobile liability 


policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 


1.  The City of Stoughton, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees 


or authorized representatives or volunteers are to be given additional insured 


status (via ISO endorsement CO 2010, CO 2033, or insurer's equivalent for 


general liability coverage) as respects: liability arising out of activities 


performed by or on behalf of the Contractors; products and completed 


operations of the Contractor; premises occupied or used by the Contractor; 


and vehicles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor. The 


coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 


afforded to the City of Stoughton, its elected and appointed officials, officers, 


employees or authorized representatives or volunteers.  


2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor's insurance shall be 


primary insurance as respects the City of Stoughton, its elected and appointed 


officials, officers, employees or authorized representatives or volunteers. Any 


insurance, self-insurance, or other coverage maintained by the City of 


Stoughton, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, or 


authorized representatives or volunteers shall not contribute to it. 


3.  Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies 


including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the City 


of Stoughton, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees or 


authorized representatives or volunteers. 


4.  The Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 


whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 


insurer's liability. 


5.  Each insurance policy required by this agreement shall state, or be endorsed 


to state, that coverage shall not be canceled by the insurance carrier or the 


Contractor, except after sixty (60) days (10 days for non-payment of 


premium) prior written notice by U.S. mail has been given to the City of 


Stoughton.  


6.  Such liability insurance shall indemnify the City of Stoughton, its elected and 


appointed officials, officers, employees or authorized representatives or 


volunteers against loss from liability imposed by law upon, or assumed under 


contract by, the Contractor for damages  on account of such bodily injury 


(including death), property damage, personal injury, completed operations, 


and products liability. 


7.  The general liability policy shall cover bodily injury and property damage 


liability, owned and non-owned equipment, blanket contractual liability, 


completed operations liability with a minimum of a 24 month policy 


extension, explosion, collapse, underground excavation, and removal of 


lateral support, and shall not contain an exclusion for what is commonly 


referred to by the insurers as the "XCU" hazards. The automobile liability 


policy shall cover all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles.  


8.  All of the insurance shall be provided on policy forms and through companies 


satisfactory to the City of Stoughton, and shall have a minimum A.M. Best's 


rating of A- VII. 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 41 


0605151356 


 


d. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions - Any deductible or self-insured retention must be 


declared to and approved by the City of Stoughton. At the option of the City of Stoughton, the 


insurer shall either reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions. 


e. Evidences of Insurance - Prior to execution of the agreement, the Contractor shall file with 


the City of Stoughton a certificate of insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent) signed by the 


insurer's representative evidencing the coverage required by this agreement. CG 20 10 11 85 covers 


all bases OR Form CO 20 10 10 01 for ongoing work exposure and Form CG 20 37 10 01 for 


products-completed operations exposure. 


Such evidence shall include an additional insured endorsement signed by the insurer's 


representative. Such evidence shall also include confirmation that coverage includes or has been 


modified to include all required provisions 1-5. 


f. Responsibility for Work - until the completion and final acceptance by the City 


of Stoughton of all the work under and implied by this agreement, the work shall be under the 


Contractor's responsibility care and control. The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore and 


make good all injuries, damages, re-erections, and repairs occasioned or rendered necessary by 


causes of any nature whatsoever. 


g.  Sub-Contractors - In the event that the Contractor employs other contractors (sub-


contractors) as part of the work covered by this agreement, it shall be the Contractor's 


responsibility to require and confirm that each sub-contractor meets the minimum insurance 


requirements specified above. 
 


 







 


 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 


0605151356 


City of Stoughton 
Insurance Endorsement Form 


(General Liability) 
 
This endorsement is issued in consideration of the policy premium.  Notwithstanding any 
inconsistent expression in the policy to which this endorsement is attached, or in any other 
endorsement now or hereafter attached thereto, or made a part thereof, the protection afforded 
by said policy shall include the following: 
 
1. Additional Insured:  With respect to such insurance as is afforded by this policy, the City of 


Stoughton and its officers, employees, elected officials, volunteers, and members of boards 
and commissions shall be named as additional insured.  Additional Insured status shall be 
endorsed onto this policy in a form at least as broad as ( CG 20 10 11 85 ) This additional 
insured coverage only applies with respect to liability of the named insured or other parties 
acting on their behalf arising out of the activities of the undertaking specified in paragraph 
No. 5 below (Indemnification Clause). 
 


2. Cross Liability Clause:  The insurance afforded applies separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the company’s 
liability. 
 


3. Occurrence Based Policy:  This policy shall be an “occurrence-based policy”. 
 


4. Primary Insurance:  For the risks covered by this endorsement, this insurance shall provide 
primary insurance to the City to the exclusion of any other insurance or self-insurance 
program the City may carry with respect to claims and injuries arising out of activities of the 
Contractor or otherwise insured hereunder. 
 


5. Indemnification Clause:  The underwriters acknowledge that the named insured shall 
indemnify and save harmless the City against any and all claims to the extent resulting from 
the wrongful or negligent acts or omissions of the named insured or other parties acting on 
their behalf in the undertaking specified as (list activity location and date(s) of event to 
include set-up and clean-up dates). 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 


6. Investigation and Defense Costs:  Said hold harmless assumption on the part of the named 
insured shall include all reasonable costs necessary to defend a lawsuit including attorney 
fees, investigators, filing fees, transcripts, court reporters, and other reasonable costs of 
investigation and defense. 
 


7. Reporting provisions:  Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policy shall 
not affect coverage provided to the City. 
 


8. Cancellation:  This policy shall not be canceled except by written notice to the Risk Manager 
at City of Stoughton, at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of such cancellation. 
 


 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 43 


0605151356 


9. Limits of Liability:  This policy shall provide minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate coverage against any injury, death, loss or 
damage as a result of wrongful or negligent acts or omissions by the named insured. 
 


10. Comprehensive Coverage:  This policy shall afford coverage at least as broad as 
Commercial General Liability “Occurrences” Form (CG 00 01) and shall include the 
following: 
 
A. General Liability 
 (1) Comprehensive Form 
 (2) Premises/Operations 
 (3) Independent Contractors Liability 
 (4) Broad Form Property Damage 
 (5) Personal Injury 
 (6) Products, Completed Operations 
 (7) Contractual 
 (8) Explosions, collapse, or underground property damage 
 
Note:  If this is a Homeowner’s Policy in lieu of Commercial General Liability, it shall afford 
coverage at least as broad as a Homeowners ISO Form II from Wisconsin and shall include 
comprehensive personal liability. 
 
This policy shall provide the dollar limit specified in paragraph 9 with the following additional 
coverage where boxes below are checked:  
 


11. NA 
 


12. NA 
 


13. Other  ___________________________________________________________________  
_________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 


 
The limits of liability as stated in this endorsement apply to the insurance afforded by this 
endorsement notwithstanding that the policy may have lower limits of liability elsewhere in the 
policy. 
 
This endorsement is effective ________ at 12:01 a.m. and forms a part of Policy No. ________. 
 
Named Insured ______________________________________________________________ 
 
I, ________________________ (print/type name) warrant that I have authority to bind the above 
listed insurance company, and by my signature hereon do so bind this company. 
 
By_________________________________________________________________________ 
     (Signature of Authorized Representative) 


 
Approved___________________________________________________________________ 
     (City Risk Manager)    (Date) 


 
 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 44 


0605151356 


 
 PLEASE ATTACH CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 


 
 
 


City of Stoughton 
Insurance Endorsement Form 


(Business Auto Liability) 
 
 
This endorsement is issued in consideration of the policy premium.  Notwithstanding any 
inconsistent expression in the policy to which this endorsement is attached, or in any other 
endorsement now or hereafter attached thereto, or made a part thereof, the protection afforded 
by said policy shall include the following: 
 
1. Additional Insured:  With respect to such insurance as is afforded by this policy, the City of 


Stoughton and its officers, employees, elected officials, volunteers, and members of boards 
and commissions shall be names as additional insured.  This additional insured coverage 
only applies with respect to liability of the named insured or other parties acting on their 
behalf arising out of the activities of the undertaking specified in paragraph No. 5 below 
(Indemnification Clause). 
 


2. Cross Liability Clause:  The insurance afforded applies separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the company’s 
liability. 
 


3. Occurrence Based Policy:  This policy shall be an “occurrence-based policy”. 
 


4. Primary Insurance:  For the risks covered by this endorsement, this insurance shall provide 
primary insurance to the City to the exclusion of any other insurance or self-insurance 
program the City may carry with respect to claims and injuries arising out of activities of the 
Contractor or otherwise insured hereunder. 
 


5. Indemnification Clause:  The underwriters acknowledge that the named insured shall 
indemnify and save harmless the City of Stoughton against any and all claims resulting from 
the wrongful or negligent acts or omissions of the named insured or other parties acting on 
their behalf in the undertaking specified as (list activity location and date(s) of event to 
include set-up and clean-up dates). 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 


6. Investigation and Defense Costs:  Said hold harmless assumption on the part of the named 
insured shall include all reasonable costs necessary to defend a lawsuit including attorney 
fees, investigators, filing fees, transcripts, court reporters, and other reasonable costs of 
investigation and defense. 
 


7. Reporting provisions:  Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policy shall 
not affect coverage provided to the City. 
 







 


C:\USERS\LKROPF\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\TEMPORARY INTERNET 


FILES\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\ZNVES928\36W9621-## DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - AME.DOCX 45 


0605151356 


8. Cancellation:  This policy shall not be canceled except by written notice to the Risk Manager 
at City of Stoughton, at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of such cancellation. 
 


 
9. Limits of Liability:  This policy shall provide minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000, 


combined single limit coverage against any injury, death, loss or damage as a result of 
wrongful or negligent acts by the named insured. 
 


10. Comprehensive Coverage:  This policy shall afford coverage at least as broad as 
(Occurrence) Form CA0001692 Code 1 “any auto” and shall include the following: 
 
A. General Liability 
 
 (1) All licensed vehicles and equipment used in the project 
 (2) Uninsured or Underinsured Motorists Liability Coverage 
 (3) Elimination of Pollution Exclusion (on request) 


 
 
 
The limits of liability as stated in this endorsement apply to the insurance afforded by this 
endorsement notwithstanding that the policy may have lower limits of liability elsewhere in the 
policy. 
 
This endorsement is effective ________ at 12:01 a.m. and forms a part of Policy No. ________. 
 
Named Insured ______________________________________________________________ 
 
I, ________________________ (print/type name) warrant that I have authority to bind the above 
listed insurance company, and by my signature hereon do so bind this company. 
 
By________________________________________________________________________ 
     (Signature of Authorized Representative) 


 
 
Approved__________________________________________________________________ 
     (City Risk Manager)    (Date) 


 
 


 PLEASE ATTACH CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


f:\common\psw\john\misc\insforms.doc 
 





		36W6024-Resolution re Implementing Agreement (6.3.15).pdf

		36W9621-## Development Agreement - Ame.pdf






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\6-9-2015\36W6024-Resolution re Implementing Agreement (6.3.15).DOC 1
0605151127


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMOM COUNCIL


Approving a Memorandum of Understanding and other matters relating to the implementation of the
Kettle Park West Development Agreement.


File Number: R-86-2015 Date Introduced: June 9, 2015


The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, resolves as follows:


RECITALS


A. The City of Stoughton (the “City”) and Kettle Park West, LLC (the “Developer”) are parties to
the Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development (Kettle Park West
Development) entered into as of November 13, 2014, which may be replaced and superseded
by a Second Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development (Kettle Park West
Development) entered into as of June 9, 2015 (collectively the “Agreement”).


B. Section D. 4. of the Agreement requires Developer to provide a letter of credit (the “Letter of
Credit”) to the City, and allows for the amount of the Letter of Credit to be reduced under
certain circumstances. The City and Developer have prepared the Memorandum of
Understanding attached as Exhibit A to set forth in greater detail the parties’ understanding
and agreement regarding the amount of the Letter of Credit required by Section D.4. of the
Agreement, and the procedure that will apply to calculating reductions of the Letter of Credit,
in order to implement the Agreement.


C. Sections C.1.(c) and C.2.(c) of and the Agreement, relating to “contingency” funds for the
construction of certain improvements, provide that if the cost of Off-Site Public Improvements
or Stormwater Management Improvements exceed certain specified amounts, and if Developer
has obtained prior written approval from the City to exceed those specified amounts, the City
shall reimburse Developer for additional costs, subject to specified maximum reimbursements.
Developer has requested the City’s approval to exceed specified construction cost estimates,
and approval to use contingency funds provided for in the Agreement.







RESOLUTION


1. The Memorandum of Understanding attached as Exhibit A is approved, and the Mayor and
City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the Memorandum of Understanding on the City's
behalf.


2. Subject to the conditions in Section 4 below, the City hereby authorizes the cost of
constructing the Off-Site Public Improvements to exceed $2,289,327, and agrees to reimburse
Developer for the cost of constructing the Off-Site Public Improvements (not including the
cost of engineering services) up to a maximum reimbursement for construction costs in the
amount of $2,601,034. Pursuant to Section C.1.(b) of the Agreement, the City shall reimburse
Developer for the cost of engineering services incurred by Developer in designing and
constructing the Off-Site Public Improvements, up to a maximum reimbursement in the
amount of $243,933.


3. Subject to the conditions in Section 4 below, the City hereby authorizes the cost of
constructing the Stormwater Management Improvements to exceed $1,247,220, and agrees to
reimburse Developer for the cost of constructing the Stormwater Management Improvements
(not including the cost of engineering services) up to a maximum reimbursement for
construction costs in the amount of $1,457,575. Pursuant to Section C.2.(b) of the Agreement,
the City shall reimburse Developer for the cost of engineering services incurred by Developer
in designing and constructing the Stormwater Management Improvements, up to a maximum
reimbursement in the amount of $124,722.


4. The City’s approvals in Sections 2 and 3 above are contingent upon Developer awarding a
contract, in accordance with the procedures in Section B.(1)(c) of the Agreement, for the
construction of the Off-Site Public Improvements and the Stormwater Management
Improvements (the “Contract”) that does not exceed the aggregate amount of $4,058,609 (not
including engineering costs). If the Contract exceeds $4,058,609, then this condition may
alternatively be satisfied by increasing the letter of credit required by Section B.1.(m) of the
Agreement by the amount by which the Contract exceeds $4,058,608


The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a
meeting held on June 9, 2015.


APPROVED:


Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST:


Lana Kropf, City Clerk
Posted


Published







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\6-9-2015\36W6024-Resolution re Implementing Agreement (6.3.15).DOC 3
0605151127


Exhibit A


Memorandum of Understanding







Exhibit A


Memorandum of Understanding


L:\DOCS\005649\000829\R ESOLUTI ON\36W6024' DOC 3
0604151547







1


Memorandum of Understanding
Kettle Park West Development


Tax Increment Guarantee Letter of Credit
June 9,2015


Background Inþrmation. The City of Stoughton (the "City") and Kettle Park West, LLC
(the "Developer") are parties to the Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake


Development (Kettle Park West Development) entered into as of November 13, 2014 (the


"Agreement"). Section D. 4. of the Agreement requires the Developer to provide a letter
of credit (the "Letter of Credit") to the City, and allows for the amount of the Letter of
Credit to be reduced under certain circumstances.


Purpose. The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to set forth in greater


detail the parties' understanding and agreement regarding the amount of the Letter of
Credit required by Section D.4. of the Agreement, and the procedure that will apply to
calculating reductions of the Letter of Credit, in order to implement the Agreement.


Definitions. The terms used in this Memorandum of Understanding that are defined in
the Agreement shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.


Amount øndform of Initial Letter of Credit.


A. Under section D.4.(b) of the Agreement, the amount of the initial and each


renewed or replacement Letter of Credit is required to equal the total principal


and interest payments on all remaining Annual Debt Service payments on City
Borrowing. The City intends to sell Note Anticipation Notes on or about


September 22,2075. The Cþ intends to pay the Note Anticipation Notes in
approximately October 2018, using a combination of Actual Tax Increment held


by the Cíty at that time, and the proceeds of a Refunding Obligation to be issued


by the City. The City Borrowing shall initially be the Note Anticipation Notes,


and shall subsequently be the Refunding Obligations. The planned City
Borrowing is described in Attachment A to this Memorandum of Understanding.


B. The City and Developer agree that, before the City sells that Note Anticipation
Notes, and in order to satis$ the condition in Section E. 6 of the Agreement,


Developer shall provide an initial Letter of Credit in the amount of $4,848,705.00,
which is the estimated total amount the City will need to pay the Note
Anticipation Notes in 2018. The initial letter of credit shall be in the form
attached as Attachment B to this Memorandum of Understanding. The City and


Developer agree that $4,848,705.00 is based on certain estimates, including an


estimate of the interest rate that will apply to the Note Anticipation Notes.


Developer agrees that when the Note Anticipation Notes are actually sold, the


City may require Developer to provide either a replacement Letter of Credit or a
supplemental Letter of Credit, such that the City has one or more Letters of Credit


3


4


2.


L:\DOCS\005649\000829\AGREE\3 6V7 7 7 7 .DOCX
06041 5 I 556


1







5


in the aggregate amount the City determines is actually needed to pay the Note
Anticipation Notes in 201 8.


Letter of Credit Recalculation Prior to Sale of Refunding Obligations. The City intends


to pay the Note Anticipation Notes in 2018 using a combination of Actual Tax Increment


held by the City at that time, and the proceeds of a Refunding Obligation to be issued by
the City. Before the City sells the Refunding Obligation, the City will calculate the


amount of the Letter of Credit required to secure repayment of the Refunding Obligation.
The amount of the Letter of Credit required to secure repayment of the Refunding
Obligation shall be equal to the total principal and interest payments on the Refunding


Obligation, less the amount of that principal and interest that will be paid using Actual
Tax Increment that has been created in the District and will be allocated to pay Annual
Debt Service pursuant to Section D.3 of the Agreement. The amount of Actual Tax
Increment that has been created in the District shall be calculated as described in Section


6 of this Memorandum of Understanding. The amount of the recalculated Letter of
Credit shall not be less than $1,000,000.00 unless the Actual Tax Increment that has been


created within the District is projected to generate an amount equal to or greater than 110


percent of the total principal and interest payments on the Refunding Obligations. If
Developer does not provide the City with an amended or replacement Letter of Credit in
the amount the City has calculated as needed to secure repayment of the Refunding


Obligation, the City may draw upon the existing Letter of Credit, in an amount not to
exceed the amount the City has calculated for the amended or replacement letter of credit,


and may either use the proceeds to pay the Note Anticipation Notes, or use the proceeds


make debt service payments on the Refunding Obligation.


Reductions to Letter of Credit. Under Section D.4.(b) of the Agreement, the amount of
the Letter of Credit may be reduced by the amount of the Annual Debt Service that will
be paid by Actual Tax Increment that has been created within the District, and will be


allocated to pay Annual Debt Service as provided in Section D.3 of the Agreement.


Section D.4(b) of the Agreement further provides that the Annual Debt Service payments


that will be paid by Actual Tax Increment that has been created within the District shall


be calculated by the City, using the actual Value Increment that has been created within
the District at the time the required amount of the Letter of Credit is calculated, using the


mil rate effective atthattime. Developer and the City agree that the Value lncrement that


has been created within the District at a given point in time will be the equalized value of
the District that has most recently been certified by the Wisconsin Department of
Revenue, minus the base value of the District as certified by the Wisconsin Department


of Revenue. Developer and the City agree that Actual Tax Increment that has been


created within the District, andthat will be available to pay Annual Debt Service, will be


the Value Increment, multiplied by the most recently established mil rate at which taxable


property in the City is taxed to levy taxes for all taxing jurisdictions in which the District
is located, multiplied by the number of years that Actual Tax Increment may lawfully be


allocated to pay Annual Debt Service. Developer and the City agree that, for purposes of
calculating reductions in the Letter of Credit, the Annual Debt Service to be paid by


Actual Tax Increment shall be calculated based upon the Refunding Obligation. Before


6.


LlDOCS\005649\000829\AGREE\3 6V "l 7 7'l .DOCX
0604151556


2







7


the Refunding Obligation is sold, the Annual Debt Service shall be the estimated total
principal and interest on the planned Refunding Obligation, as determined by the City.
After the Refunding Obligation is issue, the Annual Debt Service shall be the actual


unpaid principal and interest on the Refunding Obligation. Developer agrees that the


Letter of Credit shall not be reduced below $1,000,000.00 until the Actual Tax Increment


that has been created within the District is projected to generale an amount equal to or
greater than 110 percent of the remaining Annual Debt Service Payments on Cþ
Borrowing. The first opportunity for a reduction in the Letter of Credit shall come on


September I, 2016, and subsequent opportunities for reduction will be evaluated each


anniversary thereaft er.


Agreemenf. The City and Developer agree that this Memorandum of Understanding


accurately describes their understanding and agreement regarding the amount of the


Letter of Credit required by Section D.4. of the Agreement, and the procedure that will
apply to calculating reductions of the Letter of Credit, in order to implement the


Agreement.


DEVELOPER: CITY:


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC CITY OF STOUGHTON
Dane County, Wisconsin


By
David Jenkins, Managing Partner By


Dated: June ,2015.


Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST:


Lana C. kopt City Clerk


Dated: June 2075


L:\DOCS\005ó49\000829\AGREE\3 6V 7 7 7 7 .DOCX
06041 51 556


a
J







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
Note Anticipation Notes, Series 2015


Kettle Park West Project


Sources & Uses


Dated 1010112015 | Delivered I


Total Sourcês.


t5


Sources Of Funds
$4,815,CI00.00


,$4,815,000.00


4,577,264.00
168,525.00
45,000.00
24,075.00


't36.00


Uses Of Funds


2015NAN 5.6'15 I SINGIÃPARPASE | 5/r2n0t5 | 2tjoPM


ffi WWr&m,qr*kæ&


?lLtacluneurt A







$4,81 5,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
Note Anticipation Notes, Series 2015


Kettle Park West Project


NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE


Prineipal CouPon lnterest Total P+l clFDate Net New D/S Fiscal Total


10t01t2015
10t01t2016
0410112017


10t0112017


o4t01t2018
10t0112018


67,410.00
33,705.00
33,705.00
33,705.00
33,705.00


67,410.00
33,705.00
33,705.00
33,705.00


4,848,705.00


(67,410.00)
(33,705.00)
(33,705.00)
(33,705.00)


4,S48,705.00 4,848,705.004,815,000.00 1 .4000/o


Total $4,815,000.00 $202 $5,017,230.00 68,525.00) $4,848,705.00230.00


SIGNIFICANT DATES


1010112015


1010112015
10t0112016


Delivery Date..
First Coupon Date................


Yield Statistics


Average Life.......................


$14,445.00
3.000 Years
1.4000000%


'1.5666667%


1.5694215%
'1 .3983516%
1 .89191 1 3%


1.4000000%
3.000 Years


Average Coupon.


True lnterest Cost (TlC).......
Net lnterest Cost (NlC)......


All lnclusive Cost (AlC)....-.


IRS Form 8038
Net lnterest Cost.....................
Weighted Average MaturitY.....


2015 NANs 5.6.15 | SINGLEPURPOSE | 5/12/2015 | 2:30 PM


Ìà / -*,1
a!i:,,',ati::a::=


%ryr2nryutr*4







$4,31 5,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018


Kettle Park West'Project - Takeout of the 2015 NANS


Sources & Uses


Date 06/01/2018 | 06t01t2018


Sources Of Funds
$4,315,000.00


619,879.00


$4,934,879,00


4,837¡70.00
50,000.00
43,150.00


4,259.00


$4,934,879.00


Uses Of Funds


Total Uses.,...


2aI8 CO Banqtr Fqþs.øtt 2 | SINGI;E PU&Pa9E | sil 2no! 5 | 2:10 PM


'ffi 
Xwrlm%*&æ&







$4,81 5,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
Note Anticipation Notes, Series 2015


Kettle Park West Project


Debt Service To Maturity And To Gall


Yield Statistics


Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation.'...
Average Life
Average Coupon.,.........
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis).....


Refunding Bond lnformation


Refunding Dated Date.............
Refunding Delivery Date..........


20 t 5 NANs 5.6. t 5 | SINGLE PURPOSE | 5/ I 2/20 I 5 | 2: 30 PM


6t01t2018
0.333 Years
1.4000000%
0.333 Years


6t01t2018
6r01t2018


Principal Coupon lnterest Refunded D/S


lnterest
Date Refunded D/S To GallRefunded


Bonds


06to112018
08t01t20'18
10t0112018 4,815,000.00 1 .400% 33,705.00 4,848'705.00


4,815,000.00 22,470.00 4,837,470.00


$22,470.OO $4,837,470.00 $4,815,000.00 $33,705.00 $4,848Total $4,815,000.00


';/,. .lt


',::..-.É;lii
ffiçsr?*{å%2*{3







$4,31 5,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018


Kettle Park West Project - Takeout of the 2015 NANS


NET DEBT SERVICE SGHEDULE


Total P+l Net New D/S Revenue Surpls(Deficit) Fiscal TotalDate Principal Coupon lnterest


0610112018


04to1t2019
10to'U2019
o4to1t2020
10t0112020
04101t2021
10to1t2021
04to112022
10to1t2022
04to112023
10to1t2023
0410112024


10t0112024
04to1t2025
10to'12025
041o112026
't0to1t2026
0410112027


1010112027


04to112028
10to1t2028
04to1t2029
10to1t2029
o4to1t2030
10/01/2030
0410112031


10to1t2031
04t01t2032
10to112032
0410112033


10t0112033
o4t0112034
10t01t2034


1.450o/o


1.75Ùo/o


1.soo;"


2.1O0o/o


2300;"


2.4OOo/o


2.500;"


2.65OV"


2.850;"


2,95Do/o


3.000;


3_200%


3.350;


3.45Ùo/o


3.600"/"


3.700%


100,352.08
58,870.00
58,870.00
56,857.50
56,857.50
54,625.00
54,625.00
52,105.00
52,105.00
49,287.50
49,287.50
46,287.50
46,287-50
43,100.00
43,100.00
39,655,00
39,655.00
35,807.50
35,807.50
31,677.50
31,677.50
27,402.50
27,402.50
22,682.50
22,682.50
17,573.75
17,573.75
12,140.00
12,140.OO


6,290.00
6,290.00


285,352.08
58,870.00


288,870.00
56,857.50


291,857.50
54,625.00


294,625.00
52,105.00


297,105.00
49,287.50


299,287.50
46,287.50


301,287,50
43,100.00


303,100"00
39,655.00


309,655.00
35,807.50


315,807.50
31,677.50


316,677.50
27,402.50


322,402.50
22,682.50


327,682.50
17,573.75


332,573.75
12,140.O0


337,140.00
6,290.00


346,290.00


285,352.08
58,870.00


288,870.00
56,857.50


291,857.50
54,625.00


294,625.00
52,105.00


297,105.00
49,287.50


299,287.50
46,287.50


301,287.50
43,100.00


303,100.00
39,655.00


309,655.00
35,807.50


315,807.50
31,677 .50


316,677.50
27,402.50


322,402.50
22,682.50


327,682.50
17,573.75


332,573.75
12,140.00


337,140.00
6,290.00


346,290.00


382,991.00


382,991.00


382,991.0;


382,991.00


382.991.00


3S2,991.0;


382,991.00


382,991.00


382,991.0;


382,991.00


382,991.0;


382,991.00


382,991.00


382,991 .00


382,991.00


382,991.00


97,638.92
(58,870.00)


94,121.00
(56,857.50)


91,133-50
(54,625.00)


88,366.00
(52,105.00)


85,886.00
(49,287.50)


83,703.50
(46,287.50)


81,703.50
(43,100.00)


79,891.00
(3e,655.00)


73,336.00
(35,807.50)


67,183.50
(31,677.50)


66,313.50
(27,402.50)


60,588.50
(22,682.50)


55,308.50
(17,573.75)


50,417.25
(12,140.00)


45,851.00
(6,290.00)
36,701.00


38,768


37


36,261


36,598


37,41


37,528


38,911


37,734.


38,277


39,561


36,701


185,000.00


230,000.00


235,000.00


240,000.0;


245,000.00


250,000.0;


255,000.00


260,000,00


270,000.0;


280,000.00


2S5,000.0;


295,000.00


305,000.00


315,000.00


325.000.00


340,000.00


37


Total $4,315,000.00 $1,209,074.58 $5,524,074.58 $5,524,074.58 127,856.00 $603,781.42


SIGNIFICANT DATES
Dated.


6r01t2018
6t01t2018
41a112019


..$38,775.83
8.986 Years
3-118'|.137o/o


.3.2293944%
3-2211094%
3.0889451%
33766362%


Yield Statistics


Average Coupon.


All Inclusive Cost (AlG)..


Net lnterest Cost in Dollars..
.1.,209,074.58


8-986 Years


2018 GO Bon¿s (Take out 2 | SINGLEPURPOSE | 5/12/2015 I 2:31 PM


i j 8' f'- ,,,í,2'z¿a'¿¡¿¡14t,¡ : .#, 'Li)'4 Z :, î ,.â iþ 1"'"# '"-z
:'."u::,t







[Sampte Letter of Credit relating to TIF Guarantee]


IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT


Letter of Credit Number:


Dated:


Applicant: Kettle Park West,LLC


Beneficiary: The City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation'


Amount: $ U.S. Dollars


Expiration Date: [Not less than three years after initial issuance]


of Stoughton:


issue in favor of the City of Stoughton (the "City") our Irrevocable Letter of
for ar: amount of amounts not to exceed in the aggregate


U. S. Dollars.


To the City


We hereby
Credit No.
$


This letter of credit shalt be payabte to the City at any time upon presentation of the


following: (1) a sight draft drãwn on in an amount to which the


City is *titt"¿ urrã", Section D of the Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake


Development (Kettle Park West Development) entered into ut of the 13th day of
Novemier, Z0l4 (the "Development Agreement"); (2) an affidavit executed by a person


authorized by the City stating that monies are due from Kettle Park West,LLC pursuant


to Section O.Z(U) of ihe Development Agreement, or because this letter of credit will not


be extended, or will be extended, renewed or replaced in an amount that is less than the


amount required by Section D of the Development Agreement; and (3) this Letter of
Credit.


This letter of credit is issued to secure certain guarantee obligations of Kettle Park West,


LLC under the Development Agreement. The City intends to issue Note Anticipation


Notes in2015, and to pay the Note Anticipation Notes in 2018 by issuing a Refunding


Obligation. The urnorrrrt of this letter of credit has been calculated based on the expected


amoùnt needed to pay the Note Anticipation Notes. The amount of the Refunding


Obligation will exceed the amount of the Note Anticipation Note. Before issuing the


Refuãding Obligation, the City will require Kettle Park West,LLC to provide a letter of
credit in the amount needed to secure repayment of the Refunding Obligation, which


amount may exceed the amount of this letter of credit. 'We recognize that if Kettle Park


West, LLC fails to provide a letter of credit in the amount needed to secure repayment of


Attachrent B







the Refunding Obligation, this letter of credit shall be payable to the City, and the City


may use the pioceeds of this letter of credit to pay the Note Anticipation Notes when due.


Partial drawings are permitted.


This Letter of Credit and each extended, renewed or replacement letter of credit shall be


automatically extended without amendment for a period of one year from its expiration


date, unless at least 45 days before such expiration date we notiff the City in writing that


the letter of credit will not be extended for an additional one-year period, or that the letter


of credit will be renewed or replaced by a letter of credit in an amount that is less than the


amount required by Section D of the Development Agreement, which amount shall be


specified in such written notice. Upon receipt of notice that this Letter of Credit or any


extended, renewed or replacement letter of credit will not be renewed, or will be replaced


by a letter of credit in an amount that is less than the amount required by Section D of the


Development Agreement, the City may draw upon this or any extended, renewed, or


replacement letter of credit an amount equal to the'total principal and interest payments


that remain unpaid on all remaining Annual Debt Service Payments on City Borrowing,


as those terms are def,rned in the Development Agreement.


We hereby engage with you to honor all drafts drawn incompliance with the terms and


conditions of this Letter of Credit if presented together with the required documents at


no later than the close of business on


the date on which this Letter of Credit


Expires





		36W6024-Resolution re Implementing Agreement (6.3.15).pdf

		resolution approving MOU_001.pdf






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\5-26-2015\6-O-7-2015-Keeping of animals.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 6-2(a) 


OF THE STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL CODE 


 Committee Action:    Planning Commission recommend Council approval 5 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O - 7 - 2015 Date 


Introduced:  


May 26, 2015 and June 9, 2015 


 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Section 6-2(a) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code is amended as follows: 


 


Sec. 6-2. - Keeping of animals, birds and fowl, bees prohibited.  


 


(a) No person shall keep any hoofed animal or bees within the city, except that horses are 


conditionally allowed in the rural holding and exurban residential districts.  A maximum of three 


rabbits may be kept out of doors as pets, but not bred for meat or sale. Dogs may be kept out of 


doors in appropriate enclosures with proper shelter. Small animals, reptiles, birds and fish that 


are housed within a residence shall be permitted. Small animals include, but are not limited to, 


tropical fish, parrots, parakeets, cockatiels, canaries, cockatoos, finches, love birds, house cats, 


guinea pigs, gerbils, hamsters, fancy mice and rats, reptiles and turtles. In no event shall 


poisonous snakes or those having normal adult size that exceed four feet in length or members of 


the genus Canis or genus Felis other than common dogs and cats be permitted to be kept as pets 


in the city.  


(b) A maximum of four domesticated female chickens (hens) may be kept out of doors in 


appropriate enclosures with proper shelter. A permit must be applied for and issued by the city 


clerk prior to the keeping of chickens.  


 


 


2. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a meeting 


held on ______________________, 2015. 


 


       APPROVED: 


 


  


_______________________________ 


 Donna Olson, Mayor 


 


     ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_______________________________ 


City Clerk 


 


 


Posted _____________________ 


 


Published___________________ 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 6\O- 7 -15   Keeping of animals.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\05-11-15\Planning Materials\6-2 Keeping of Animals - 051115.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: April 20, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the May 11, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting.


1. O-7-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 6-2 for the keeping of animals. (Tabled
from March 9, 2015)
This ordinance was tabled to allow the Common Council to make a decision related to the
keeping of pigeon ordinance which the Council voted to deny. This ordinance is now
provided to clarity language for the keeping of hoofed animals. A recommendation to Council
is necessary. The ordinance is provided. Staff recommends approval.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
5/11/15
Page 3 of 3


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 5-11-15.doc


Nicole Hines questioned why not that location? Hohol stated the site is better suited for
development such as for a restaurant.


10. O-7-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 6-2 for the keeping of animals.
(Tabled from March 9, 2015)
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 – 0.


11. O-9-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) related to commercial
horse stables. (Tabled from March 9, 2015)
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment.


Christianson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Christianson closed the public hearing.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 – 0.


12. Future agenda items.
AJ Arnett Preliminary Plat and Urban Service Area Amendment for Norse View Heights.


13. Adjournment. Motion by Hohol to adjourn at 6:50 pm, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 5-
0.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Stacey



mstacey

Highlight





		6-O-7-2015-Keeping of animals Resolution.pdf

		O-7-2015- Keeping of Animals Ordinance Amendment.pdf






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\5-26-2015\7-O-9-2015-Commercial Animal Boarding 15.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An Ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code  


Committee Action:    Planning Commission recommends Council approval 5 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O -  9  - 2015 Date 


Introduced:  


May 26, 2015 and June 9, 2015 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


1. Section 78-206(4)(j) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code is amended as follows: 


Sec. 78-206(4).  – Commercial land uses. 
 


(j)  Commercial animal boarding. 


Description: Commercial animal boarding facility land uses include land uses which provide 


short-term and/or long-term boarding for animals.  An Eexamples of these this land uses include 


is a commercial kennels and commercial stables.  Exercise yards, fields, training areas, and trails 


associated with such land uses are considered accessory to such land uses and do not require 


separate consideration. 


1.   Regulations: 


a. Each unsupervised animal shall be provided with their own an indoor 


 containment area.  For supervised animals, a minimum of 1 containment area or 


 5% of all animals shall be provided a containment area, whichever is greater. 


b. The minimum permitted size of horse or similar animal stall shall be 100 


 square feet.   


cb. Special events such as shows, exhibitions, and contests shall only be permitted 


 when a temporary use permit has been secured. (See Section 78-906.) 


2. Parking requirements: One space per every 1,000 square feet of gross floor 


 area. 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


Dates 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Donna Olson, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        City Clerk, Lana Kropf 



https://www.municode.com/library/





T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\05-11-15\Planning Materials\Commercial Animal Boarding - 051115.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: April 20, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the May 11, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting.


1. O-9-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) related to commercial animal
boarding. (Tabled from March 9, 2015)
This ordinance was tabled to allow the Common Council to make a decision related to the
keeping of pigeon ordinance which the Council voted to deny. This ordinance is to provide
clarity for commercial animal boarding containment areas. Since a minor change was made to
the ordinance, another public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary. The
ordinance is provided. Staff recommends approval.







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Ord. Amend commercial animal boarding 15.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, May 11, 2015
at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public Safety Building,
Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider an amendment to the
City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. The proposed ordinance amendment is to section
78-206(4)(j), Commercial animal boarding, of the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance, Dane County,
Wisconsin.


The amendment is proposed to modify the commercial animal boarding regulations related to
containment areas. The proposed amendments may be viewed at the Department of Planning &
Development, City Hall, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published April 23, 2015 and April 30, 2015 Hub







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
5/11/15
Page 3 of 3


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 5-11-15.doc


Nicole Hines questioned why not that location? Hohol stated the site is better suited for
development such as for a restaurant.


10. O-7-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 6-2 for the keeping of animals.
(Tabled from March 9, 2015)
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 – 0.


11. O-9-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) related to commercial
horse stables. (Tabled from March 9, 2015)
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment.


Christianson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Christianson closed the public hearing.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 – 0.


12. Future agenda items.
AJ Arnett Preliminary Plat and Urban Service Area Amendment for Norse View Heights.


13. Adjournment. Motion by Hohol to adjourn at 6:50 pm, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 5-
0.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Stacey



mstacey

Highlight





		7-O-9-2015-Commercial Animal Boarding 15 Resolution.pdf

		O-9-2015-Commercial Animal Boarding ordinance amendment.pdf






 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of $2,725,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, 


Series 2015A 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance meets June 9, 2015  


 
Fiscal Impact: $2,725,000.00 


 
File Number: 


 
R-84-2015 


 
Date Introduced:  June 9, 2015 


 
WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, 


desirable and in the best interest of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City") 


to raise funds for public purposes, including paying the cost of Capital Improvement Plan 


projects, stormwater improvements and utility projects (the "Project"); 


WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within 


the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 


Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes; 


WHEREAS, cities are authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin 


Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes for such public 


purposes; 


WHEREAS, the City has directed Springsted Incorporated ("Springsted") to take the 


steps necessary to sell the City's general obligation promissory notes (the "Notes") to pay the 


cost of the Project; 


WHEREAS, Springsted, in consultation with the officials of the City, prepared Official 


Terms of Offering (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 


this reference) setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Notes and indicating 


that the Notes would be offered for public sale on June 9, 2015; 


WHEREAS, the City Clerk (in consultation with Springsted) caused notice of the sale of 


the Notes to be published and/or announced and caused the Official Terms of Offering to be 


distributed to potential bidders offering the Notes for public sale; 


WHEREAS, the City has duly received bids for the Notes as described on the Bid 


Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid 


Tabulation"); and 


WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by 


the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid 


requirements set forth in the Official Terms of Offering and is deemed to be the most 


advantageous to the City.  Springsted has recommended that the City accept the Proposal.  A 







copy of said Proposal submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as 


Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 


Section 1A.  Ratification of the Official Terms of Offering and Offering Materials.  The 


Common Council of the City hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Notes set forth in 


Exhibit A attached hereto as and for the details of the Notes.  The Official Terms of Offering and 


any other offering materials prepared and circulated by Springsted are hereby ratified and 


approved in all respects.  All actions taken by officers of the City and Springsted in connection 


with the preparation and distribution of the Official Terms of Offering and any other offering 


materials are hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 


Section 1B.  Authorization and Award of the Notes.  For the purpose of paying the cost 


of the Project, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, the 


principal sum of TWO MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND 


DOLLARS ($2,725,000) from the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 


Proposal.  The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the Notes for the sum set forth on 


the Proposal (as modified on the Bid Tabulation and reflected in the Pricing Summary referenced 


below and incorporated herein), plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, is hereby accepted.  


The Mayor and City Clerk or other appropriate officers of the City are authorized and directed to 


execute an acceptance of the Proposal on behalf of the City.  The good faith deposit of the 


Purchaser shall be retained by the City Treasurer and applied in accordance with the Official 


Terms of Offering, and any good faith deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be 


promptly returned.  The Notes shall bear interest at the rates set forth on the Proposal. 


Section 2.  Terms of the Notes.  The Notes shall be designated "General Obligation 


Promissory Notes, Series 2015A"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of 


$2,725,000; shall be dated their date of issuance; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any 


integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates 


per annum and mature on April 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth on 


the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this reference.  


Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year commencing on 


April 1, 2016.  Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 


months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  


The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Notes is set forth on the Debt Service 


Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by this reference (the 


"Schedule"). 


Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Notes maturing on April 1, 2023 and thereafter 


shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on April 1, 2022 or on 


any date thereafter.  Said Notes shall be redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from 


maturities selected by the City and within each maturity, by lot, at the principal amount thereof, 


plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.  If the Proposal specifies that any of the Notes are 


subject to mandatory redemption, the terms of such mandatory redemption are set forth on an 


attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP and incorporated herein by this reference.  Upon the optional 


redemption of any of the Notes subject to mandatory redemption, the principal amount of such 







Notes so redeemed shall be credited against the mandatory redemption payments established in 


Exhibit MRP for such Notes in such manner as the City shall direct. 


Section 4.  Form of the Notes.  The Notes shall be issued in registered form and shall be 


executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 


herein by this reference. 


Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 


(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 


principal of and interest on the Notes as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 


resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the 


taxable property of the City a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2015 through 2024 for 


the payments due in the years 2016 through 2025 in the amounts set forth on the Schedule. 


(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 


Notes remains unpaid, the City shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 


obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 


the issuance of the Notes, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the City 


and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other 


taxes of the City for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax 


roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund 


Account created below. 


(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 


from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Notes when due, 


the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall 


be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 


 


Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 


 


(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 


treasury of the City, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct 


from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 


accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 


issued by the City may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 


fund. 


 


Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 


designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for $2,725,000 General Obligation Promissory 


Notes, Series 2015A" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account shall be maintained 


until the indebtedness evidenced by the Notes is fully paid or otherwise extinguished.  The City 


Treasurer shall deposit in the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the 


City at the time of delivery of and payment for the Notes; (ii) any premium which may be 


received by the City above the par value of the Notes and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all 


money raised by the taxes herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of 


meeting principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (iv) such other sums as may be 







necessary at any time to pay principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (v) surplus monies 


in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be 


required by Section 67.11, Wisconsin Statutes. 


 


(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 


Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 


interest on the Notes until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Notes 


canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 


Notes prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 


invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 


payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 


and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Notes may be used to 


reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the City, be invested by purchasing 


the Notes as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted 


municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted 


Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.  


Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions 


of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury 


Regulations (the "Regulations"). 


 


(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Notes have been paid in full and 


canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 


Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the 


Common Council directs otherwise. 


 


Section 7.  Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 


the Notes (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be 


paid at the time of the delivery of the Notes into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) 


shall be deposited into a special fund separate and distinct from all other funds of the City and 


disbursed solely for the purposes for which borrowed or for the payment of the principal of and 


the interest on the Notes.  Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in 


Permitted Investments.  Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, 


remaining in the Borrowed Money Fund after the purposes for which the Notes have been issued 


have been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously 


thereafter cannot be needed for such purposes shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund 


Account. 


Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 


Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 


the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 


Regulations and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall 


certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date 


of delivery of the Notes to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Notes are not 


"arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 


Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The City represents and covenants 


that the projects financed by the Notes and the ownership, management and use of the projects 







will not cause the Notes to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the 


Code.  The City further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the 


extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes including, if 


applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The City further covenants 


that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any 


action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the 


proceeds of the Notes) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of 


the Notes to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or 


would otherwise cause interest on the Notes to be included in the gross income of the recipients 


thereof for federal income tax purposes.  The City Clerk or other officer of the City charged with 


the responsibility of issuing the Notes shall provide an appropriate certificate of the City 


certifying that the City can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code 


and Regulations. 


 


(b) The City also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 


restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 


Notes provided that in meeting such requirements the City will do so only to the extent 


consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Notes and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 


to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 


 


Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Notes are hereby 


designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 


relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 


purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations. 


 


Section 11.  Execution of the Notes; Closing; Professional Services.  The Notes shall be 


issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of 


the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed 


with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser 


upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 


delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Notes 


may be imprinted on the Notes in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City 


has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Notes, at least one of the signatures 


appearing on each Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers 


whose signatures appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such 


signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they 


had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 


directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Notes and all such documents, certificates and 


acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City 


hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and 


contracts in conjunction with the Notes, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for 


legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.  


Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Notes is hereby 


ratified and approved in all respects. 


Section 12.  Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 


Notes shall be paid by Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin, 







which is hereby appointed as the City's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of 


Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes (the "Fiscal Agent").  The Fiscal Agency Agreement 


between the City and the Fiscal Agent shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as 


Exhibit F and incorporated herein by this reference. 


 


Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Notes.  The City shall cause books 


for the registration and for the transfer of the Notes to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person in 


whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 


thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be made 


only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 


and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 


Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at 


the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 


duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 


transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or 


transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the 


Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No registration 


shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for transfer. 


The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 


authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer. 


Section 14.  Record Date.  The fifteenth day of each calendar month next preceding each 


interest payment date shall be the record date for the Notes (the "Record Date").  Payment of 


interest on the Notes on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 


Notes as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record 


Date. 


Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 


order to make the Notes eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 


New York, New York ("DTC"), the City agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 


Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations previously executed on behalf of the City and on file in 


the City Clerk's office. 


Section 16.  Official Statement.  The Common Council hereby approves the Preliminary 


Official Statement with respect to the Notes and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as 


"final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and 


Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All 


actions taken by officers of the City in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary 


Official Statement and any addenda to it or Final Official Statement are hereby ratified and 


approved.  In connection with the Closing, the appropriate City official shall certify the 


Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or Final Official Statement.  The City Clerk 


shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or Final Official 


Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser. 







Section 17.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The City hereby covenants 


and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, to enter into a written undertaking (the 


"Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 


information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in 


accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Notes or 


by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the 


Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of 


the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of the 


Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Notes). 


To the extent required under the Rule, the Mayor and City Clerk, or other officer of the 


City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure 


Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the 


City's Undertaking. 


Section 18.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 


proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 


statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 


Notes in the Record Book. 


Section 19.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 


insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions 


necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 


agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are 


acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment 


of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights 


of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes by the bond insurer and 


notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to 


the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Note provided herein. 







Section 20.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 


rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 


hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 


event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 


such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 


effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 


EXHIBIT A 


Official Terms of Offering 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


 


(See Attached) 


 







 


QB\35341597.1  


EXHIBIT B 


 


Bid Tabulation 


 


 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


 


(See Attached) 







 


QB\35341597.1  


EXHIBIT C 


 


Winning Bid 


 


 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


 


(See Attached) 


 







 


QB\35341597.1  


EXHIBIT D-1 


Pricing Summary 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


(See Attached)







 


QB\35341597.1  


EXHIBIT D-2 


Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution.  


(See Attached)







 


QB\35341597.1  


[EXHIBIT MRP 


Mandatory Redemption Provision 


The Notes due on April 1, ____, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject to 


mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 


price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 


interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 


in amounts sufficient to redeem on April 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 


specified below: 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity)] 


 







 


QB\35341597.1  


EXHIBIT E 


 


(Form of Note) 


 


 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 


REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 


DANE COUNTY 


NO. R-___ CITY OF STOUGHTON $_______ 


GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2015A 


 


 


MATURITY DATE:  ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE:    CUSIP: 


April 1, _____ July 9, 2015 ____% ______ 


DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 


PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 


($__________) 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City"), 


hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its Nominee Name 


(the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified 


above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per 


annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior 


to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year 


commencing on April 1, 2016 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  Both the 


principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner in lawful money of the 


United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire transfer to the 


Depository in whose name this Note is registered on the Bond Register maintained by Associated 


Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the "Fiscal Agent") or any 


successor thereto at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding 


the semi-annual interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Note is payable as to principal 


upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent. 


For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the 


levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby 


irrevocably pledged. 


This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $2,725,000, all 


of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and redemption 


provision, issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, 


for public purposes, including paying the cost of Capital Improvement Plan projects, stormwater 







 


 -2- 
QB\35341597.1  


improvements and utility projects, all as authorized by resolutions of the Common Council duly 


adopted by said governing body at meetings held on May 12, 2015 and June 9, 2015.  Said 


resolutions are recorded in the official minutes of the Common Council for said dates. 


The Notes maturing on April 1, 2023 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to 


maturity, at the option of the City, on April 1, 2022 or on any date thereafter.  Said Notes are 


redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the City and within 


each maturity, by lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus 


accrued interest to the date of redemption. 


[The Notes maturing in the years _______, _______ and ______ are subject to 


mandatory redemption by lot as provided in the resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of 


the Notes at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption and 


without premium.] 


In the event the Notes are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Notes are in 


book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 


registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 


transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 


thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 


Notes of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Notes of such maturity to be redeemed 


will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:  the 


designation, date and maturities of the Notes called for redemption, CUSIP numbers, and the 


date of redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to 


have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Notes shall 


cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 


available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 


that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Notes shall no longer be deemed to be 


outstanding. 


It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 


exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have 


existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the 


City, including this Note and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 


limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 


irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon, 


when and as payable. 


This Note has been designated by the Common Council as a "qualified tax-exempt 


obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 


1986, as amended. 







 


 -3- 
QB\35341597.1  


This Note is transferable only upon the books of the City kept for that purpose at the 


office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 


depository for the Notes, and the City appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Note to 


the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together with 


a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent 


duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new fully 


registered Note in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new depository in 


exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the City for any tax, 


fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration.  The 


Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Notes (i) after the Record Date, (ii) 


during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of notice of any 


proposed redemption of the Notes, or (iii) with respect to any particular Note, after such Note has 


been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and City may treat and consider the Depository in 


whose name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving 


payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon 


and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Notes are issuable solely as negotiable, fully-


registered Notes without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 


 This Note shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 


Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent. 


 


 No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 


impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 


default hereunder. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, by its 


governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 


facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official 


or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 


By: ______________________________ 


Donna L. Olson 


Mayor 


(SEAL) 


By: ______________________________ 


Lana Kropf 


City Clerk 







 


 -4- 
QB\35341597.1  


Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 


 


CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 


 


 This Note is one of the Notes of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned resolutions 


of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 


ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY, 


NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 


GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN 


 


 


 


By____________________________ 


        Authorized Signatory 







 


 -5- 
QB\35341597.1  


ASSIGNMENT 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 


____________________________________________________________________________ 


(Name and Address of Assignee) 


____________________________________________________________________________ 


(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 


the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 


______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on 


the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 


Dated:  _____________________ 


Signature Guaranteed: 


_____________________________   ________________________________ 


(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 


or Securities Firm) 


NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 


name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 


appears upon the face of the within Note in every 


particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 


change whatever. 


____________________________ 


(Authorized Officer)







 


QB\35341597.1  


EXHIBIT F 


 


Fiscal Agency Agreement 


 


 


 


(See Attached) 


 







 


QB\35341597.1  


FISCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT 


THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the 9th day of July, 2015 between the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin (the "Municipality"), and Associated Trust Company, National 


Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the "Fiscal Agent"). 


WITNESSETH: 


WHEREAS, the Municipality has duly authorized the issuance of its $2,725,000 General 


Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2015A, dated July 9, 2015 (the "Obligations") pursuant to 


the applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes and the resolutions adopted by the 


Municipality on May 12, 2015 and June 9, 2015 (collectively, the "Resolution"); and  


WHEREAS, the Municipality is issuing the Obligations in registered form pursuant to 


Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and applicable 


Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Resolution and Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes the 


Municipality has authorized the appointment of the Fiscal Agent as agent for the Municipality 


for any or all of the following responsibilities:  payment of principal and interest on, registering, 


transferring and authenticating the Obligations as well as other applicable responsibilities 


permitted by Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the Municipality and the Fiscal Agent hereby agree as follows: 


I.  APPOINTMENT 


The Fiscal Agent is hereby appointed agent for the Municipality with respect to the 


Obligations for the purpose of performing such of the responsibilities stated in Section 67.10(2), 


Wisconsin Statutes, as are delegated herein or as may be otherwise specifically delegated in 


writing to the Fiscal Agent by the Municipality. 


II.  INVESTMENT RESPONSIBILITY 


The Fiscal Agent shall not be under any obligation to invest funds held for the payment 


of interest or principal on the Obligations. 


III.  PAYMENTS 


At least one business day before each interest payment date (commencing with the 


interest payment date of April 1, 2016 and continuing thereafter until the principal of and interest 


on the Obligations should have been fully paid or prepaid in accordance with their terms) the 


Municipality shall pay to the Fiscal Agent, in good funds immediately available to the Fiscal 


Agent on the interest payment date, a sum equal to the amount payable as principal of, premium, 


if any, and interest on the Obligations on such interest payment date.  Said interest and/or 


principal payment dates and amounts are outlined on Schedule A which is attached hereto and 


incorporated herein by this reference. 







 


 -2- QB\35341597.1  


IV.  CANCELLATION 


In every case of the surrender of any Obligation for the purpose of payment, the Fiscal 


Agent shall cancel and destroy the same and deliver to the Municipality a certificate regarding 


such cancellation.  The Fiscal Agent shall be permitted to microfilm or otherwise photocopy and 


record said Obligations. 


V.  REGISTRATION BOOK 


The Fiscal Agent shall maintain in the name of the Municipality a Registration Book 


containing the names and addresses of all owners of the Obligations and the following 


information as to each Obligation:  its number, date, purpose, amount, rate of interest and when 


payable.  The Fiscal Agent shall keep confidential said information in accordance with 


applicable banking and governmental regulations. 


VI.  INTEREST PAYMENT 


Payment of each installment of interest on each Obligation shall be made to the registered 


owner of such Obligation whose name shall appear on the Registration Book at the close of 


business on the 15
th


 day of the calendar month next preceding the interest payment date and shall 


be paid by check or draft of the Fiscal Agent mailed to such registered owner at his address as it 


appears in such Registration Book or at such other address as may be furnished in writing by 


such registered owner to the Fiscal Agent. 


VII.  PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 


(a) Principal Payments.  Principal shall be paid to the registered owner of an 


Obligation upon surrender of the Obligation on or after its maturity or redemption date. 


Term Bonds [The Obligations due on April 1, 20__ and April 1, 20__ (the "Term Bonds") are 


subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot at a redemption price equal to One 


Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the date 


of redemption, from deposits which are required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on 


April 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds specified on the attached Schedule 


MRP.  


The Municipality hereby directs and the Fiscal Agent hereby agrees to select the Term Bonds 


to be redeemed on the dates set forth above and to give notice of such redemption as set forth in 


substantially the form attached hereto as Schedule B by registered or certified mail, facsimile 


transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic transmission or in any other manner required 


by The Depository Trust Company at least thirty (30) days but not more than sixty (60) days 


prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Obligation selected to be 


redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address shown on the registration books as of the Record 


Date. 


The Municipality, in accordance with Section III hereof, shall make payments sufficient 


for the Fiscal Agent to pay the amounts due on the Term Bonds subject to mandatory 


redemption.] 







 


 -3- QB\35341597.1  


(b) Official Notice of Redemption.  In the event the Municipality exercises its option 


to redeem any of the Obligations, the Municipality shall, at least 35 days prior to the redemption 


date, direct the Fiscal Agent to give official notice of such redemption by sending an official 


notice thereof by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, 


electronic transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company at 


least 30 days but not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered 


owner of each Obligation to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown in the 


Registration Book.  Such official notice of redemption shall be dated and shall state (i) the 


redemption date and price; (ii) an identification of the Obligations to be redeemed, including the 


date of original issue of the Obligations; (iii) that on the redemption date the redemption price 


will become due and payable upon each such Obligation or portion thereof called for 


redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; and (iv) the 


place where such Obligations are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, which 


place of payment shall be the principal office of the Fiscal Agent.  Term Bonds [Official notice 


of the redemption of Obligations subject to mandatory redemption shall be given in the same 


manner.] 


(c) Additional Notice of Redemption.  In addition to the official notice of redemption 


provided in (b) above, further notice of any redemption shall be given by the Fiscal Agent on 


behalf of the Municipality to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and The Depository 


Trust Company of New York, New York but neither a defect in this additional notice nor any 


failure to give all or any portion of such additional notice shall in any manner defeat the 


effectiveness of a call for redemption. 


Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall be sent at least 30 days before 


the redemption date by registered or certified mail, overnight delivery service, facsimile 


transmission or email transmission and shall contain the information required above for an 


official notice of redemption. 


(d) Redemption of Obligations.  The Obligations to be redeemed at the option of the 


Municipality shall be selected by the Municipality and, within any maturity, shall be selected by 


lot by the Depository described in Section VIII hereof.  Term Bonds [Obligations subject to 


mandatory redemption shall be selected as described in (a) above.]  The Obligations or portions 


of Obligations to be redeemed shall, on the redemption dates, become due and payable at the 


redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date such Obligations or portions of 


Obligations shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such Obligations for redemption in 


accordance with the official notice of redemption, such Obligations shall be paid by the Fiscal 


Agent at the redemption price.  Installments of interest due on or prior to the redemption date 


shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest.  Upon surrender for any partial 


redemption of any Obligation, there shall be prepared for the registered owner a new Obligation 


or Obligations of the same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal.  Each check or other 


transfer of funds issued in payment of the redemption price of Obligations being redeemed shall 


bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Obligations being redeemed with 


the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 







 


 -4- QB\35341597.1  


VIII.  UTILIZATION OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY 


The Depository Trust Company's Book-Entry-Only System is to be utilized for the 


Obligations.  The Fiscal Agent, as agent for the Municipality, agrees to comply with the 


provisions of The Depository Trust Company's Operational Arrangements, as they may be 


amended from time to time referenced in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations executed 


by the Municipality.  The provisions of the Operational Arrangements and this Section VIII 


supersede and control any and all representations in this Agreement. 


IX.  OBLIGATION TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE 


The Fiscal Agent shall transfer Obligations upon presentation of a written assignment 


duly executed by the registered owner or by such owner's duly authorized representative.  Upon 


such a transfer, new registered Obligation(s) of the same maturity, in authorized denomination or 


denominations in the same aggregate principal amount for each maturity shall be issued to the 


transferee in exchange therefor, and the name of such transferee shall be entered as the new 


registered owner in the Registration Book.  No Obligation may be registered to bearer.  The 


Fiscal Agent may exchange Obligations of the issue for a like aggregate principal amount of 


Obligations of the same maturity in authorized whole multiples of $5,000. 


The Obligations shall be numbered R-1 and upward.  Upon any transfer or exchange, the 


Obligation or Obligations issued shall bear the next highest consecutive unused number or 


numbers. 


The Municipality shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the appropriate officers of the 


Municipality are authorized to execute any new Obligation or Obligations necessary to effect any 


such transfer. 


X.  AUTHENTICATION, IF REQUIRED 


The Fiscal Agent shall sign and date the Certificate of Authentication, if any, on each 


Obligation on the date of delivery, transfer or exchange of such Obligation.  The Fiscal Agent 


shall distribute and/or retain for safekeeping the Obligations in accordance with the direction of 


the registered owners thereof. 


XI.  STATEMENTS 


The Fiscal Agent shall furnish the Municipality with an accounting of interest and funds 


upon reasonable request. 


XII.  FEES 


The Municipality agrees to pay the Fiscal Agent fees for its services hereunder in the 


amounts set forth on Schedule [B/C] hereto. 







 


 -5- QB\35341597.1  


XIII.  MISCELLANEOUS 


(a) Nonpresentment of Checks.  In the event the check or draft mailed by the Fiscal 


Agent to the registered owner is not presented for payment within five years of its date, then the 


monies representing such nonpayment shall be returned to the Municipality or to such board, 


officer or body as may then be entitled by law to receive the same together with the name of the 


registered owner of the Obligation and the last mailing address of record and the Fiscal Agent 


shall no longer be responsible for the same. 


(b) Resignation and Removal; Successor Fiscal Agent.  (i) Fiscal Agent may at any 


time resign by giving not less than 60 days written notice to Municipality.  Upon receiving such 


notice of resignation, Municipality shall promptly appoint a successor fiscal agent by an 


instrument in writing executed by order of its governing body.  If no successor fiscal agent shall 


have been so appointed and have accepted appointment within 60 days after such notice of 


resignation, the resigning fiscal agent may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the 


appointment of a successor fiscal agent.  Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as 


it may deem proper and prescribes, appoint a successor fiscal agent.  The resignation of the fiscal 


agent shall take effect only upon appointment of a successor fiscal agent and such successor 


fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment. 


(ii)  The Fiscal Agent may also be removed by the Municipality at any time upon 


not less than 60 days' written notice.  Such removal shall take effect upon the appointment of a 


successor fiscal agent and such successor fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment. 


(iii)  Any successor fiscal agent shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to 


Municipality and to its predecessor fiscal agent an instrument accepting such appointment 


hereunder, and thereupon the resignation or removal of the predecessor fiscal agent shall become 


effective and such successor fiscal agent, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall 


become vested with all the rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor, with 


like effect as if originally named as fiscal agent herein; but nevertheless, on written request of 


Municipality, or on the request of the successor, the fiscal agent ceasing to act shall execute and 


deliver an instrument transferring to such successor fiscal agent, all the rights, powers, and trusts 


of the fiscal agent so ceasing to act.  Upon the request of any such successor fiscal agent, 


Municipality shall execute any and all instruments in writing for more fully and certainly vesting 


in and confirming to such successor fiscal agent all such rights, powers and duties.  Any 


predecessor fiscal agent shall pay over to its successor fiscal agent any funds of the Municipality. 


(iv)  Any corporation, association or agency into which the Fiscal Agent may be 


converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its 


corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or 


association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it 


is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor fiscal agent under this Agreement and 


vested with all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities and privileges and all other matters as 


was its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act, deed or 


conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary 


notwithstanding. 


(v)  Any successor fiscal agent shall be qualified pursuant to Sec. 67.10(2), 







 


 -6- QB\35341597.1  


Wisconsin Statutes, as amended. 


(c) Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the payment in 


full of all of the principal and interest on the Obligations to the registered owners of the 


Obligations or (ii) five years after (aa) the last principal payment on the Obligations is due 


(whether by maturity or earlier redemption) or (bb) the Municipality's responsibilities for 


payment of the Obligations are fully discharged, whichever is later.  The parties realize that any 


funds hereunder as shall remain upon termination shall, except as may otherwise by law, be 


turned over to the Municipality after deduction of any unpaid fees and disbursements of Fiscal 


Agent or, if required by law, to such officer, board or body as may then be entitled by law to 


receive the same.  Termination of this Agreement shall not, of itself, have any effect on 


Municipality's obligation to pay the outstanding Obligations in full in accordance with the terms 


thereof. 







 


 -7- QB\35341597.1  


(d)  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in 


several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one 


and the same instrument. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement, being duly 


authorized so to do, each in the manner most appropriate to it, on the date first above written. 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE 


COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


By _________________________ 


Donna L. Olson 


Mayor 


(SEAL) 


_________________________ 


Lana Kropf 


City Clerk 


ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY, 


NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, GREEN 


BAY, WISCONSIN 


  Fiscal Agent 


(SEAL) By__________________________ 


Title______________________ 


Attest________________________ 


Title___________________ 


 







 


QB\35341597.1  


SCHEDULE A 


Debt Service Schedule 


$2,725,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2015A 


of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


dated July 9, 2015 


(SEE ATTACHED) 







 


QB\35341597.1  


[SCHEDULE MRP 


Mandatory Redemption Provision 


The Obligations due on April 1, ____, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are 


subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a 


redemption price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed 


plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are 


required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on April 1 of each year the respective 


amount of Term Bonds specified below: 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,     


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,     


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,     


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,     


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______(maturity)]







 


QB\35341597.1  


[SCHEDULE B 


NOTICE OF MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION* 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2015A 


Dated July 9, 2015 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a portion of the Notes of the above-referenced issue which 


mature on April 1, 20___ shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on April 1 of 


the year set forth below, in the amount set forth below, at a redemption price equal to One 


Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of 


redemption. 


Redemption Date Principal Amount  CUSIP Number 


 April 1, ____ $_______ ____________ 


Such portion of the Notes will cease to bear interest on the redemption date set forth above. 


BY THE ORDER OF THE 


COMMON COUNCIL 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


Dated: __________________ 


 


 


 


                                                 


* To be provided by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic 


transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company, to The Depository Trust 


Company, Attn:  Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ  07310, not 


less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the call date.  At least thirty (30) days prior to 


the call date notice shall also be filed electronically with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through 


the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.] 



http://www.emma.msrb.org/





 


 -11- QB\35341597.1  


SCHEDULE [B/C] 


 


 


 


(SEE ATTACHED) 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving an Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request, Certified Survey Map
(CSM) by Robert Jensen for property located adjacent to 3376 Quam Drive, Town of Dunn,
Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval - 0 with the Mayor voting


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-87-2015 Date Introduced:


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


WHEREAS, on June 8, 2015 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed and recommend the
Common Council approve the proposed ETJ Land Division (CSM) request by Robert Jensen for property
located adjacent to 3376 Quam Drive, Town of Dunn, Wisconsin; and


WHEREAS, the certified survey map request is proposed to create an additional residential building lot; and


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as
determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and due to its distance from the City is not identified on the
Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land
division (CSM) request by Robert Jensen for property located adjacent to 3376 Quam Drive, Town of Dunn,
Wisconsin is hereby approved as presented.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Jensen ETJ CSM.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\06-08-15\Planning Materials\Jensen ETJ CSM Memo- 060815.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: May 27, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the June 8, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting and June 9, 2015
Common Council Meeting.


1. Robert Jensen requests Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) certified survey map
approval to create an additional residential parcel adjacent to 3376 Quam Drive, Town
of Dunn.
This property is within the City’s 1.5 mile extra-territorial jurisdiction. Land divisions within
the ETJ area require action by the Common Council. The intent is to create an additional
residential lot. The Town of Dunn has approved the CSM. The CSM, resolution and related
materials are provided. A recommendation to the Common Council is necessary. Staff
recommends approval contingent on the Town of Dunn and Dane County approval.































Page 1 of 1Google Maps


5/27/2015https://www.google.com/maps/@42.952468,-89.265355,17z



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line







Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, TomTom, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,


May 28, 2015
0 1 20.5 mi


0 2 41 km


1:71,547



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Rectangle







 
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.  City-County Bldg, Room 116  Madison, WI 53703-3342  Phone: 608.266.9086  Fax: 608.267.1540 


Dane County Planning & Development
Land Division Review 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
May 26, 2015 
 
Snyder & Associates 
5010 Voges Rd. 
Madison, WI 53718 
 
Re:  Jensen (CSM 9734) 


Town of Dunn, Section 25 
(2 lots, 0.62 acres)  
 
 


Attn: Adam Gross, S-3017 
 
Both lots are within the non-riparian shoreland district and the current zoning is R-3, 
residential. 
 
The proposed CSM is hereby conditionally approved as follows: 
 
1.  The document is to be completed in accordance with S.236.34, Wisconsin State Statutes. 
 
2.  The existing shed on proposed lot 2 shall be dimensioned to the nearest 0.1 foot in relation to 


the proposed property boundaries. 
 
3.  All owners of record are to be included in the owner’s certificate. (County records indicate 


that JENSEN REV LIVING TR, ROBERT & DIANNE & ROGER EHLE & MICHELLE R 
HALLMARK is the owner.   
 Spouse’s signature and middle initials are required to provide valid certificates. 


 
4.  A City of Stoughton approval certificate shall be included with respect to the extra-territorial 


review. 
 
5.  The required approval certificates are to be satisfied. 


 Town of Dunn 
 City of Stoughton 


 
6.  Comments from the Dane County Surveyor are to be satisfied:   


a. Please check the legend for monuments set.  It may be taken from a plat and not accurate 
for this map.  236.20(2)(b) 


b. Please add the word “LOT” the lot number designations.  236.20(2)(e) 
c. Show the centerline and width each side of centerline for Quam Point Road.  


236.20(2)(f)&(h) 







 
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.  City-County Bldg, Room 116  Madison, WI 53703-3342  Phone: 608.266.9086  Fax: 608.267.1540 


7.  The recordable document is to be submitted for final review and approval. 
 
 
When the above conditions have been fully satisfied, the original document along with a copy of 
this letter may be submitted for final review and the Dane County approving signature will be 
affixed.  Please allow for ten (10) working days for approving signature.  Any questions 
regarding this letter, please contact myself. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Daniel Everson 
Assistant Zoning Administrator 
608.267.1541 
 
CC:  
Clerk, Town of Dunn 
Clerk, City of Stoughton 





		Jensen ETJ CSM resolution.pdf

		Jenson ETJ CSM.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to Reject Bids for the 2015 Jefferson Street Storm
Sewer Project


Committee Action: Finance recommends approval 5-0


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: R-88-2015 Date Introduced: June 9, 2015


WHEREAS, the 2015 Budget includes funding for the 2015 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project, and


WHEREAS, the consulting engineer’s construction estimate for this project including contingency is
$275,000, and


WHEREAS, the City received one bid for this project, and


WHEREAS, the low bidder is E & N Hughes for $319,804.00, and


WHEREAS, the consulting engineer has reviewed the bids and recommends increasing the budget
amount since adequate funds are not available for this project in 2015 and rebidding in 2016 with an
increased budget, and


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee met on May 26, 2015 to review the bids and supports the
consulting engineer’s recommendation to reject the current bids and rebid the project in 2016, and


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to reject the bids for the 2015
Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project, budget additional funds for 2016 and rebid the project in 2016.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R--2015-2015Storm Sewer Project.docx







 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to Reject Bids for the 2015 Jefferson Street Storm 
Sewer Project 


 
Committee Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact: $_________________  
 
File Number: 


 
R--2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 26, 2015 


 
WHEREAS, the 2015 Budget includes funding for the 2015 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the consulting engineer’s construction estimate for this project including contingency is 
$275,000, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City received one bid for this project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the low bidder is E & N Hughes for $319,804.00, and  
 
WHEREAS, the consulting engineer has reviewed the bids and recommends increasing the budget 
amount since adequate funds are not available for this project in 2015 and rebidding in 2016 with an 
increased budget, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee met on May 26, 2015 to review the bids and supports the 
consulting engineer’s recommendation to reject the current bids and rebid the project in 2016, and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to reject the bids for the 2015 
Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project, budget additional funds for 2016 and rebid the project in 2016. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                             
Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R--2015-2015Storm Sewer Project.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  May 21, 2015 


 


To:  Finance Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Finance Committee Agenda Item 


 


R- - 2015 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project – Reject Bids 


 


Bids for this project were opened on May 14, 2015.  The engineer’s construction estimate for the 


project was $250,000.  The low bid was $319,804.   After review of the bids and the factors 


affecting the pricing, the engineering consultant recommends rejecting the bids, budgeting 


additional funds for the 2016 budget and rebidding this project early in 2016 for construction in 


2016. 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    


     


 
    


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 
 


 


999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 
Madison, Wisconsin 53717 
(608) 826-0532 phone 
(608) 826-0530 FAX 
www.vierbicher.com 


vision to reality 
 


R e e d s b u r g  ( 6 0 8 )  5 2 4 - 6 4 6 8  |  M a d i s o n  ( 6 0 8 )  8 2 6 - 0 5 3 2  |  P r a i r i e  d u  C h i e n  ( 6 0 8 )  3 2 6 - 1 0 5 1  


May 15, 2015 
 
Mr. Rodney Scheel  
Director of Planning & Development 
City of Stoughton 
381 East Main Street 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589 
 
Subject: Analysis of Bids - 2015 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Construction 


Bid Deadline: May 14, 2015, 1:00 pm 
 
Dear Rodney: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to analyze the bidding results for the 2015 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer 
Construction project and to recommend re-bidding the project.  A tabulation of bids received is 
attached.  
 
This is the final segment of the Jefferson Street storm sewer project.  As you know the area of the work is 
narrow, in close proximity to occupied homes, and the primary drainage way through this part of the 
City.  
 
In 2014, we provided an opinion of probable project construction cost with contingency to be 
approximately $275,000.  Last June four bids were received for the project and ranged from $325,668.25 
to $423,278.00.  It is apparent from the range in the 2014 bid prices that each contractor viewed the 
project’s unique challenges (narrow work area, close proximity to houses, large pipe) from different 
perspectives resulting in a wide range of bid prices.  Since the project was bid earlier in the year this 
time, and the previous year’s bids were known, we were hopeful for a bid result closer to our 2014 
opinion of probable cost.  This year one contractor, E & N Hughes Company, Inc., submitted a bid in the 
amount of $319,804.00.  This bid is $5,864.25 less than the low bid from last year. 


 
With regard to completing the project, the City has two primary options available.   
 


 The first option is to award the project to E & N Hughes.  A few minor restoration and 
replacement items could likely be adjusted and negotiated with E & N Hughes.  However, the 
likelihood of significant cost savings in this scenario is small.   
 


 The second option is to reject all bids and re-bid the project at a later date.  However, because 
this project has already been bid twice before, it is less likely to that a lower bid will be realized 
next year.   


 







May 15, 2015 
Page 2 


 
This project continues to be a significant priority for the City.  Considering the aforementioned options, 
we recommend that the City accept E & N Hughes bid and proceed with construction of the project 
this year.  If this is not financially feasible, the City should increase their budget for the project and re-bid 
the work next year.   
 
If you have any questions with regard to the bid or our analysis of the bid, I am available to discuss those 
questions with you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Timothy L. Schleeper, PE 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M:\Stoughton, City of\130285_2014 Jefferson St Storm Swr Replace\Engineering\Bidding and Contract\2015-05-15 JeffStmBidAnalysisLetter.doc 





		R--2015-2015Storm Sewer Project.pdf

		Stormwater Item.pdf

		Jefferson Reso.pdf

		jefferson memo.pdf

		2015-05-22 JeffStmBidAnalysisLetter.pdf








 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Liquor License renewals for the 


period of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety Committee approved 3-0. 


 
Fiscal Impact: Class A Beer=$100; Class A Liquor=$500; Class B Beer & Liquor=$600; Class 


C Wine=$100; Publication fee=$20; Reserve fee=$10,000 


 
File Number: 


 
R-89-2015 


 
Date Introduced:  June 9, 2015 


 
WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received applications for Liquor License renewals for the period 


of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016, for the businesses: 


 


“Class A” Liquor & Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage: 


 


Marilyn J. Beckman dba All Through the House, 160 E. Main Street 


Bottled Pleasure, Inc., Robert D Savaske Jr, Agent, dba Stoughton Spirits, 965 N. Page Street. 


Bharya Sapinder Singh, dba Best Plaza Liquor, 1056 W. Main Street. 


Ultra Mart Foods LLC, Francisco Mendez, Agent dba Pick 'N Save #6390, 1750 Hwy 51/138 


Yahara River Grocery Cooperative, Cindy Cwik, Agent, dba Yahara River Grocery Cooperative 


(YRGC), located at 229 E Main St. 


Lilystone, Inc., Susan M. Smith, Agent, dba The Lilystone, 193 W. Main Street 


 


Class “A” Beer: 


Jagat Petroleum, LLC, Gurinderdeep S Dhillon, dba JP Market, 1009 W. Main Street  


PDQ Food Stores, Inc., Franklin T. Nelson, Agent, dba PDQ Store #132, 2400 Roby Road 


Diamond Jubilee, Inc., Mirza Akhtar Baig, Agent, dba Food Pantry, 981 N. Page Street 


Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, Phil Hamm, Agent dba Wal-Mart Store #1176, 1800 Hwy 51 West. 


Walgreen Corporation, Jeremy Iverson, Agent dba Walgreen’s #07519, 1705 US Hwy 51. 


Kwik Trip, Inc., Nichole Marie Genthe, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #738, 1231 E. Main Street 


Kwik Trip, Inc., Sarah E. Pierce, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #739, 517 W. Main Street 


 


 


“Class B” Beer & Liquor: 


Banushi’s LLC, Ilir Banushi, Agent, dba Banushi’s Bar & Grill, 800 Nygaard Street 


Laz Bistro & Bar LLC, Cary Lazzaro, Agent, dba Laz Bistro & Bar, 419 E. Main Street 


The Koffee Kup LLC,  Kendall L Gulseth, Agent, dba The Koffee Kup Restaurant, 355 E. Main Street 


Mandt Community Center, Inc, Bart Quale, Agent, dba Mandt Community Center, 400 Mandt 


Parkway 


Lynn M. Hull dba Never Mind, 201 S Sixth St 


Gimpy & Gappy, LLC, Rebecca Halback, Agent, dba Rev. Jim’s, 317 S Division Street 


Karie R. Manhart dba Sonny's, 151 E. Main Street 


VFW Badger Post 328, Jean Torgerson, Agent, dba VFW Badger Post 328, 200 S. Veterans Road 


Nel-Car Corporation, Carter J. Smith, Agent, dba Viking Lanes, 1410 Hwy 51/138 


Danny K. Aaberg dba Whatever, 508 E. Main Street 







Robert Veits, Agent dba Cully’s Cocktail Lounge, 210 S. Water Street 


Fire & Eis, LLC, Agent Scott Sowlles, dba Fahrenheit 364, 364 E. Main St 


Deak’s Pub & Grill, LLC, Jamie D. Bush, Agent, dba Deak’s Pub & Grill, 1017 Nygaard Street 


Famous Yeti’s LLC, Cale J. Ryan, Agent, dba Wendigo Tavern, 121 E. Main Street 


Viking Brew Pub LLC, Vik Malling, Agent, dba Viking Brew Pub, 211 E. Main Street 


 


Class “B” Beer & Reserve “Class B” Liquor: 


Dhwani Lodging, LLC, Rakesh Patel, Agent dba Brickhouse, 111 Chalet Drive 


El Rio Grande Restaurant LLC, Cesar Cervantes, Agent dba El Rio Grande Restaurant, 524 W. Main 


Street 


American Legion Post 59, Elvin “Sonny” Swangstu, Agent, dba American Legion Post 59, 803 N Page 


St. 


 


Class “B” Beer & Class “C” Wine: 
Pizza Hut of Madison, Inc., Donald R. Elwood Agent, dba Pizza Hut, 1424 Hwy 51/138 


Famous Yeti’s LLC, Caitlin Way, Agent, dba Famous Yeti’s Pizza, 971 N. Page Street. 


Big Sky, LLC, Sean Crowley, Agent, dba Big Sky Restaurant, 176 E. Main Street 


Brittany E. Barcena, Agent, dba Nello’s Pizza, 135 W. Main Street 


 


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on May 27, 2015, to consider the terms of the Liquor 


License renewal applications and, upon advisement from the Police Chief, recommends approval; now 


therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to issue the Liquor License renewals to these businesses. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B”
Retailer’s License and a Special Event License to the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association for
the Catfish River Music Festival.


Committee Action: Public Safety approved 3-0


File Number: R-90-2015 Date Introduced: June 9, 2015


WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class
“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License to the Stoughton Opera House Friends
Association for the Catfish River Music Festival.


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on May 27, 2015 to consider the terms of the
Application for a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and the Special Event License, and
recommends approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and
Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City of Stoughton, attached hereto and
incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of Stoughton and the Stoughton Opera House
Friends Association for the Catfish River Music Festival.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







C I T Y O F S T O U G H T O N 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 
APPLICATION 


FEE: $30.0Q 


"APPLICANT^ 
Name. AddressJ Home .Telephone # Work Telephone C 


IirORGANIZATION 
Name, 


Ha 
Address^ 


l\2H f 


Type of events 
Outdoor Indoor • Parade 


Name of. Event 


Date and time. 


To ^ 


Location ji^^m, p, 


Will there.be any.activity.taking place that involves music, amplifiers,, loudspeakers, etc?. 


Yes (attach additional sheet with description and times of activities) No 


License.applying for:..S10.00.individually.or.for^both., 


Temporary Class "B" beer Temporary Class "B" wine 


Persons proposed to sell fermented malt beverages and/or wine (attach additional sheet if necessary) 
Namej^iae^affiHaHMaaiittMaBHKk. "rlirr-- iiiiiiiiiirMiiiiiiiiaiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiih Prior.relevant experience(s). 


i\a4- e n v j j 2 L X M , 


ATTACH: A sketch showing the layout for handling fermented malt beverages and/or wine. 
A copy of the application or l icense of each person(s) who will be holding the beverage operator's l icehse 


who requires the supervision of the sale of fermented malt beverages and/or wine. ; '4^ /̂ •. :^f.,.^:^, 
-'^adja^ent property owners and a copy of the form used to notify them of the event, (outdoor eyerit inly) 


''^^JdU^ _, agree to promptly pay the City for the City's 


(applicant) r 


charges incurred either in regulating this license or remedying any unsatisfactory post-event maintenance 
by the abovejiginecLpei^^or organization as required. 


Dai 


Office Use: Date Paid Amount Paid Receipt Number 
S.̂ City Clerk\LICEN ÎNO)̂ p̂ecial Invent thermit Form 







APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY CLASS "B'VCLASS B" RETAILER'S LICENSE 


See Additional Information on reverse side. Contact the municipal clerk if you have questions. 


p e l e \ I ' ^ 5 Application Date: y / y / ' 


County of 


F E E $_ 


• Town • Village ^ City of <77) 0 ^f.^~^fJ 
The named organization applies for: (check appropriate box(es).) 


^ A Temporary Class "B" license to sell fermented malt beverages at picnics or similar gatherings under s. 125.26(6), Wis. Stats. 


^ A Temporary "Class B" license to sell wine at picnics or similar gatherings under s. 125.51(10), Wis. Stats. , 


at the premises described below during a special event beginning "7/-3//5 a"d ending ~7/5~// ^ 
to comply with all laws, resolutions, ordinances and regulations (state, feaeral or local) affecting the sale orfemiented ma 
and/or wine if the license is granted. 


and agrees 
It beverages 


1. ORGANIZATION (cftecfcapprapnafe box) J ^ B o n a fide Ciub • Church •Lodge/Society • Veteran's Organization • F îr Association 


(a) Name 5r&(;fiKr?^/^ QWJ^^ \\O<}^^ fiLtBVDS /^SJ^^^C^jnTlOA) 
(b) Address /l/jf^r/J Sj-; 
(c) Date organized i l - wf f f 


rte of ini 


• Town • Village [gJCity 


(d) If corporation, give date of incorporation 


(e) If the named organization is not required to hold a Wisconsin seller's permit pursuant to s. 77.54 (7m), Wis. Stats., 
box: • 


(f) Names and addresses of all officers: 


check this 


President U f ) i ^ A ^ f ^ ^ t 5 


££MJLL 
Secretary 


Treasurer \/^/cJ/V7>//W UEM)I^ ^ 
(g) Name and address of manager or person in charge of affair: p t f / . . 


2. LOCATION OF PREMISES WHERE B E E R AND/OR WINE WILL B E SOLD: 


gJJ{a) Street number (2J:::;?VQJQJL^ ^QPJlX-
Block (b) Lot 


(c) Do premises occupy all or part of building? 


(d) If part of building, describe fully all premises covered under this application, which floor or floors, hr room or rooms, 
cover: 


3. NAME OF EVENT \l 1?^ 


(a) List name of the event 


license is to 


(b) Dates of event 3̂ */̂  ^ ^y>^^ / - V '20/^ 


DECLARATION ! 


The Offlcer(s) of the organization. Individually and together, declare under penalties of law that the informatibn provided In this japplication 
is true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief. 


(Name of OrgariizaSon) / ) 


(Signature/date) 


Officer. 


Officer. 


(Signature/date) 


Date Filed with Clerk 


(Signature/date) 


Date Reported to Council or Board 


Date Granted by Council 


A M I S (R. 5-11) 


License No. 


Wisconsin Department of Revenue 







William Brehm 
Director 
Stoughton Opera House 
Board Member SOHFA 
May 18, 2015 


2015 Catfish River Music Festival 


Application & Permit Packet 
The 2015 Catfish River Music Festival is set to take place July 3rd - July 5th and will be the 
second annual of what Is set to become an annual Stoughton Opera House fundraising event. 
The event will feature live music at the Rotary Park gazebo. A modest number of spaces will be 
made available for arts vendors (8-10), food carts (3-5), and local non-profits (6-8). Additionally, 


1 







" Normally, this would be 
the type of event that I 
would leave Stoughton 
to find someplace else -
like one of the East Side 
festivals in Madison. 
This time around, 1 got 
to stay in Stoughton and 
hear similar music, hang 
out in a cool park, eat 
fun food, drink good 
beer, and enjoy being 
outside." 


- 2014 Survey 


Respondent 


the Opera House is supporting the application by the Stoughton Opera House Friends 
Association (SOHFA) for a temporary class B license to sell beer and wine during this event. 


A street closing application has been filed for this event and a copy has been included here for 
your convenience. While the boundaries of activities in the street for this event will not extend 
beyond the corner of 6th and Jefferson, the street closing extends a block in either direction. 
Barricades and "No Through Traffic" signage will be placed at the intersection of Jefferson and 
7th as well as 6th and South St. Final approval is pending receipt of signatures from neighbors. 


While this is a free outdoor event, the entire event area will be enclosed with temporary fencing. 
There will be approximately three gateway points for entry into and exit from the event area. 
Signage, trash barrels, and event staff will be positioned at each of these points to ensure 
compliance regarding open containers outside the event area. 


The point of sale location for beer and wine sales can be seen in the included overhead image. 
The p.o.s. location will be double fenced with temporary fencing with one entry/exit point. IDs 
will be checked at the entry point to verify age as well as wristbands being provided. Those 
who purchase beer or wine will be allowed to travel throughout Rotary Park as well as the 
adjacent sidewalks and streets as long as they are within the designated event area. 


Bike racks will be provided on 6th street to encourage alternatives to automobile 
transportation. Additionally, handicap parking will be provided in the small railed parking lot 
adjacent to City Hall. 


The following pages contain the application for a special event and have been prepared for 
your review as well as that of council. 


2 







EVENT INFORMATION 


Name: Catfish River Music Festival 
Charitable: Yes - proceeds to benefit the Stoughton Opera Hoiise 
Event type: Folk Music Festival 
Dates: 7/3/15 - 7/5/15 
Expected Attendance: 500-1500 
Alcohol Sales: Yes - Stoughton Opera House Friends Association 


Food Sales: Yes 
Amplification: Yes 
Dumpster: No 
Electric Used: Yes - at gazebo 
Digging: Yes - fence stakes 
Parking: Parking is on-street, city lots, and special event parkihg 
Security: Security will be provided by event staff, volunteer staff, 
paid security staff experienced in performance venues, as well as 
additional Stoughton PD officers already assigned to the general 
area due to other activities. There will also be overnight securi^ 
of the event area. 


Medical: A first aid station will be set-up and supervised 
throughout the event. Additionally, the EMS, PD, and Fire staff ^re 
within a close proximity. 


Accessibility: This is a handicap accessible event. 


Site-map: See included image 


5 







S T R E E T CLOSING R E Q U E S T 


Location: Jefferson St (5'" to 7*) and 6 * St (South St to King Electric alley) 


Date: Julv 3"^ 9am - July S"' 10pm 


Time: July 3"* 9atn - Julv 5'" 10pm 


Reason: Catfish Rivef Music Festival 


Requested by: Stoughton Opera House 


As an affected neighbor, my signature below aclmowledges mu und upstanding and agreement 


of this request (use second sheet if needed). 


Name Address Signature 


P E N D I N G 


For Use By City staff 


Signatures 


Detour Route 


Insurance Documents 


Approved 
LanaKropf-CifyClerk 


Approved 
Karl Manthe-Street Superintendent 







I 
I 


Schedule: 
Thursday Julv 2nd: 


8am-6prni - set-up (fencing, tents, tables, trash barrels, portapots, etc.) 


Friday July 3rd: 


8am-3pm - additional set-up (barricades, beer p.o.s., food carts, vendors, etc) 
3pm - event area opens 
3pm-9:00pm - music in the gazebo 
9:30pm - outdoor area shut-down 


Saturday Julv 4th: 


8am-11am - Set-up event area 
11am-9pm - music in the gazebo 
10pm - outdoor area shut-down 


Sunday July 5th: 


9am-12pm - Set-up event area 
12pm-9pm - music in the gazebo 
9pm-11pm - Clean-up event area 


Monday July 6th: 


Complete event clean-up 


ADDITIONAL EVENT ORGANIZER CONTACT INFORMATION 


Stoughton Opera House with Stoughton Opera House Friends Association 


381 E. Main St. 


Bill Brehm, Director SOH, Board Member SOHFA 


608-347-8441 
bbrehm@ci.stouqhton.wi.us 


7 







8 







CITY OF STOUGHTON Receipt: 100008207 05/19/15 


381 E. MAIN ST. 
STOUGHTON, WI 53589 C a s h i e r : LANA 


Received Of: STOUGHTON OPERA HOUSE FRIENDS, ASSO 


The sum of: 40.00 


901 CLASS B TEMPORARY LICENSE 10.00 


100-00000-44110-3160 10.00 


906 SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 30.00 


100-00000-44150-3160 30.00 


Total 40.00 


TENDERED: CHECKmiONEY ORDER 1502 30.00 


CASH 10.00 


05/19/2015 12:29 





		Temp Liquor License- Catfish River Festival.pdf

		10-Catfish River Festival License Apps.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue an Operator’s License to Nicole Stewart


Committee Action: Public Safety denied 2-1


File Number: R-91-2015 Date Introduced: June 9, 2015


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from Nicole
Stewart, and


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on May 27, 2015, to consider the terms of the
Operator’s license application and recommends denial; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby authorized and directed to issue a two year Operator’s license to Nicole Stewart and which is to
be reviewed after that year.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







City of Stoughton 
Administrative Services 


May 18,2015 


Nicole Stewart 
1233 Jackson St #103 
Stoughton, WI53589 


Dear Ms. Stewart, 


This letter in to inform you that your application for a City of Stoughton Operator's License has 
been denied by the Chief of Police. You are able to appear before the Public Safety Committee 
when they discuss this issue. The next Public Safety meeting is to be held Wednesday, May 27, 
2015 at 6pm in the Hall of Fame Room in Stoughton City Hall. Failure to appear will result in 
an automatic denial of your application. 


Please feel free to call 608-873-6677 should you have any questions. 


Thank you. 


Lana C Kropf 
City of Stoughton City Clerk 


City of Stoughton * 381 E Main Street, Stoughton Wl 53589 * Ph 608-873-6677 * Fax 608-873-5519 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 
321 South Fourth Street 
Stoughton, W? 53589 
(608) 873-3374 


GREGORY W. LECK 
aiJEF OF POLICE 


DATE: May 18,2015 


TO: Public Safety Conunittee 
City Clerk 


FROM: Chief Leek 


REFERENCE: Alcohol Operators License Nicole H. Stewart. 


On May 18,2015,1 reviewed the application for a Bartender's License from a Nicole H. 
Stewart. After completing my review of her application, I am not recommending 
approval of the operator's license at this time. 


I base my decision on the fact that the applicant shows a Conviction for Operating Under 
the Influence of Intoxicant from a 2-09-15 incident. 


Based on City of Stoughton policy and the fact that this violation is considered 
substantially related to the licensed activity, I am recommending that the applicant be 
denied an operator's license. 


Respectfully, 


Gregory W. Leek 
Chief of Police 







l^upitKAdjOK (BARTENDER) 


J* ; ^ i R A T O R ^ n E A R r ( R j i N E ^ A L ) 


• P R 0 V I S I 5 N ^ ^ P B A T O R ? $15.00(is^S 
^^^^^ 


OBTAIN A P.ROVIS.IQNAL^AT.AN AJDDITIQNAT.. nnST DF 4!i ^ no I B M l i ^ ^ S ^ ^ a a a ^ i ^ a ^ ^ ^ 


NAME OF APPLICANT . ^ a ^ Last ,^ 
T O B E F I L L E D O U T B Y T H E A P F L I C A K T : 


-HOMTADpRESS a - - ^ ^ Street 


'^BjRTHDATEiaaBK!^,^ k'AlI 


l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ H I N U O U S L Y R E S r o E D IN WISCONSIN: 


P L A C E OF N T A S A N ' Q P E R A T O R T M A N A U E R 


4GEN 


H A ^ ^ Y O U G O M P L E T E D BEVERAefe S E R V E R - T R A M N G ? ' ^ 


• HOW LONG HAVE'YOU BEEN EMPLOYED'AS AN I 
OPERATORAv4ANAGER:« 1 f/^y^J 


'iE* ̂ ^ ^ a a i ^ or other bfferTses (Including all 


f ARRESTING AGENCY j ! D A T E 
1 DISPOSITION 


'LICANTS SIGNAiruRa m s m x ^ ^ ^ D A T E S I G l ^ 


T O B E F I L L E D O U T B Y T H E STOUGHTON-POLlH D E P A R T M E ^ ^ ^ -


^ U L L Y COMPLETED APPUCATI0N, PHOTO ID (ATTACH A COPY) AND APP 


i e i T Y CLERK-ATTNrLTCENSTNfS^Sl F ^ A / T A T M « ,CLERK^ATTNrLICENSING,^381 E.^MAIN ST.? S t O U G ^ T O ^ ' S l ? ! 







ORDINANCE T O PROHIBIT LICENSING OF PERSONS HAVING 
OUTSTANDING C I T Y O F STOUGHTON DELINQUENCIES 


Section 14-2 of the Stoughton Municipal Code reads as follows: 


Sec. 14-2 License withholding for unpaid city claims. 


City representatives shall not issue a permit or an original or 
renewal license to any person who has delinquent financial claims 
outstanding to the city, including, without limitation due to 
enumeration in this section, unpaid taxes, assessments, delinquent 
municipal utility charges or unpaid ordinance violation convictions. 


I understand the above ordinance and hereby state that I do not have any 
delinquent accounts with the City of Stoughton or its Electric and Water Utility. 
False statements will constitute immediate revocation of permit or license. 


License Applicantlsr^ghature 







AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF INFORMATION 


Name: First M.L Last Date of Birth 


Residing a t _ W/f^f^ ,<3ML 
AddrqssJi City 


I hereby authorize the Stoughton Police Department to release to the City Clerk's Office, 
the City Attorney and the City Council, my driving records and any arrest records for 
review in connection with my application for an Operator's License and/or Alcohol 
License with the City of Stoughton. 





		Stewart, Nicole Operator License.pdf

		5-Stewart Operator Application.pdf



